
1 

REVISED  
GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, APRIL 4, 2022 

At least one of the city councilmembers plan to attend the meeting remotely. Citizens can view the meeting in 
person at City Hall or remotely using the link below.   The meeting will be streamed live on the City's Facebook 
and YouTube pages at https://www.goldsboronc.gov/mayor-of-goldsboro/city-council-minutes/. 

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 

1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS
a. NPO Support Discussion (Mayor)
b. GWTA Board Vacancy Discussion (Mayor)

4. NEW BUSINESS
c. Non-Resident Fees (Parks and Recreation)

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation (Stanley Kelly, Fellowship Baptist Church)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A.1   Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of March 7, 2022
A.2   Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of March 21, 2022

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Homefront Room Revival Presentation (Katelyn Tinsley) 
C. Month Of The Military Child Proclamation 

VI. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

VII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
D. Z-1-22 Angelita Morrisroe – East of N. William Street between Wilson St. and E. US 70 Hwy. service road

and within the corporate City limits (Planning) 

E. Z-2-22 Eastern Hill, Inc. – South side of E. Elm Street between Crawford St. and Beale St. and within the
corporate City limits (Planning) 

F. Z-3-22 RBV Investments, LLC. – North side of E. US 70 Hwy. between Corbett St. and N. Oak Forest Dr.
and located in the corporate City limits (Planning) 

G. Z-4-22 KRP Investments, LLC. – East side of Wayne Memorial Dr. between Fourth St. and Gracie Pl. and
located in the corporate City limits (Planning) 

H. Contract Extension for Goldsboro-Wayne Transportation Authority (GWTA) Marketing and Public
Relations Services with Quest Corporation of America, Inc. (Planning) 

I. Municipal Agreement with the North Carolina Department of Transportation for Inspection of Bridges
on the Municipal Street System (Engineering) 

J. Professional Engineering On-Call Services to conduct a study for Utility Merger/Regionalization
Feasibility (MRF) (Engineering) 

K. Approve PO for Computer Replacement Plan (IT)

VIII. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION

-      Sponsorship of Dillard Alumni

-     Re-Entry Month Proclamation

Removed from agenda



2 

 
IX. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
X. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS  

L. Week Of The Young Child Proclamation 
 

XI. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS   
 

XII. CLOSED SESSION 
 

XIII. ADJOURN 



-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



Agency

 Budget 
Application

Requirements 
document

W9 form
Board of 
Directors

Agency’s detail 
budget

990
audited financial 

statements
COI

Articles of 
Incorporation

501(c)(3) 
letter

Quarterly 
Financial 

Statements

4932 Literacy Connections X X X X X X X X X X None

4980 Rebuilding Broken Places X X X X X X None X None None None

4981 HGDC Community Crisis Ctr. X X X X X X None X None None None

6993 Boys & Girls Club X X X X X X X X None None None

6994 Arts Council X X X X X X X X None X None

9920 Wayne County Schools - PEG distribution None None None None None None None None None None None

9933 WAGES (funded with CDBG-CV funds) X X X X X X X X None None None

9937 W.A.T.C.H. (funded with CDBG-CV funds) X X X X X X X X None None None

9947 Museum X X X X X X X X None X None

9952 Communities in Schools X X X X X X X X None None None

9972 Mental Health Association (3 year agrmt. FY20-FY22) None None None None None None None None None None None

9979 Waynesborough Park None None None None None None None None None None None

9980 Goldsboro/Wayne Transportation X X X X X None X X None None None

9982 MPI (Mephibosheth Project Inc) None None None None None None None None None None None

9996 W.I.S.H. X X X X X X X X None X None

9919 Three In One Family Center None None None None None None None None None None None

Waynesborough Model RR Club Inc. X X X X X X X ‐ None X None

Warm Body Warm Soul Help Center X X X X X None None None X X None

4 Day Movement X X X X X X X X X X None

Vision of David X X X X
listed in 

application
X None X X X None

Freedom Fam Youth Uhuru X X X X X X None None None X None

Passionate Beginnings X X X X X None None X X X None

MLFL X None X X None X None None X None None

Wayne Pregnancy Center/Cry Freedom Missions X X X X X X X X X X None

FY 2022-23 Agency Requests



Parks and Recreation 
Program Fees

Felicia L. Brown, CPRP
Parks and Recreation Director

April 4, 2022



Background on P&R Program Fees
• Collection of user fees for programs and for the use of recreational facilities is an 

accepted practice and provides an important source of revenue for the City of 
Goldsboro

• During their June 17, 2002 meeting, our City Council voted to end distinction 
between resident and non-resident fees, charging one universal fee per program

• Our program participation numbers have greatly increased since then, with a 
significant increase in non-residents participating; all participants pay the same fee

• Goldsboro population in 2010 was 36,437; in 2015, the population was 35,592; 
while the population in 2020 was 34,250

• Should we charge a different fee for non-residents?

3/31/2022 2



Youth Soccer Participation

611
643

702

0

593
627

848

Spring 2019 Fall 2019 Spring 2020** Fall 2020 Spring 2021 Fall 2021 Spring 2022

Pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n 
N

um
be

rs

** Registered participants; season did not occur due to COVID

Youth Soccer Seasons at Bryan Multi-Sports Complex

3/31/2022 3



Fees Charged by Other P&R Departments
• Wilson Parks & Recreation Youth Sports Fees - $35 for resident; $52 for non-resident

• Wake Forest Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Youth Sports Fees - $60 for 
resident; $100 for non-resident

• Greenville Recreation & Parks Youth Sports Fees – varies; usually $10 more for non-
resident

• Raleigh Parks, Recreation & Cultural Resources Youth Sports Fees – $40-$55 for 
resident, depending on sport; $15 more for non-resident

3/31/2022 4



Fees Charged by Other P&R Departments 
(continued)

• Clayton Parks & Recreation Youth Sports Fees - $30-$40 for resident; $60-$80 for 
non-resident

• Clinton Parks & Recreation Youth Sports Fees – varies; $10 more for non-residents

• Mt. Olive Parks & Recreation Youth Sports Fees - $30 per participant, universal fee

• Kinston/Lenoir County Parks & Recreation Youth Sports Fees – one universal fee 
paid by participants

3/31/2022 5



Items for Council to Consider
• Charge a fee for Youth sports and offer a Resident Discount

• Charge fees for rentals and offer a Resident Discount

• Charge fees for programs and offer a Resident Discount

It is on the participant to prove residency – property tax, water bill, etc.
Example: $55 for Youth Soccer; $45 with Resident Discount

3/31/2022 6



QUESTIONS?

3/31/2022 7



1 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 7, 2022 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Council 
Chambers, City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on March 7, 2022. 

Call to Order.  Mayor Pro Tem Polack called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  

Present: Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack, Presiding 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews 
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  

Absent: Mayor David Ham 
Councilman Gene Aycock 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 
            Laura Getz, City Clerk 

Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 

Adoption of the Agenda.  Councilwoman Matthews requested to add a discussion entitled nonprofit 
support request deadline to the agenda. Councilwoman Jones made a motion to add the non-profit financial 
deadline to the agenda. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried, Council 
adopted the agenda.  

Old Business. 
Clarification of GEC Motion from February 7, 2022 Council Meeting. City Attorney Lawrence 

shared information regarding the need for clarification of the Goldsboro Event Center motion made at the 
February 7, 2022 meeting. Councilman Broadaway made a motion to clarify the wording of the motion from the 
February 7 meeting that the management of the Goldsboro Event Center is now under the management of 
Director of Golf and no longer under the Director of Paramount. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman 
Jones and unanimously carried. 

Boards and Commissions Vacancy Discussion. Laura Getz, City Clerk shared current boards and 
commissions vacancies.  Council voted on the following members. Ms. Getz will bring a resolution to council at 
the meeting on March 21, 2022, appointing the members.  

Councilwoman Jones made a motion to appoint Roderick White (District 6) and Amber Tyler to the 
Commission on Community Relations and Development. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and 
unanimously carried.   

Councilwoman Matthews made a motion to appoint Shellcy Unruh to the Historic District Commission. 
The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried.   

Councilman Gaylor made a motion to appoint Tammy Cannon to the Goldsboro Tourism Council. The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried.   

Councilwoman Matthews made a motion to select Mykyia Hines for the student position and Laurie 
Kaufman to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Commission. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor 
and unanimously carried.   

Councilwoman Matthews made a motion to appoint Willie Earl Smith and Willie Baptiste to the Golf 
Course Committee. The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried.   

Item A.1



2 

New Business. 
Juneteenth Celebration Presentation. Liza Govan and Kariana Taylor with Curtis Media shared the 

following presentation and requested city support for the 2022 Jamz Out Juneteenth Event.  

Ms. Govan requested a cash investment or trade from the city. City Manager Salmon discussed the application 
process. Ms. Govan stated the cash investment they would request from the city is $1,000. City Manager Salmon 
shared the funds would be taken from Community Relations budget.  

Councilman Broadaway made a motion that $1,000 will be coming from the Community Relations special 
revenue fund to be used for the Juneteenth Celebration. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and 
unanimously carried.   

Nonprofit Support Request Deadline. Councilwoman Matthews asked if any non-profits had requested 
help or extensions regarding submitting request. Councilman Gaylor asked that anyone that was denied be 
allowed to resubmit. Councilwoman Matthews requested an extension of the deadline for non-profit support 
request to Wednesday at 5:00 pm. Council and the manager agreed to allow anyone that was denied to reapply, 
other non-profits that were struggled to get information and those that have submitted to add supplemental 
information by Wednesday at 5:00 pm.  The city will update the website with the new deadline date.    

Consent Agenda Review.  Each item was reviewed. Additional discussion included the following:  
Authorization of Sale of Substandard Lot to Adjacent Property Owner Under Session Law 2004-94 

(Senate Bill 1370) for 324 S. James Street (Pyramid Management Team, LLC). Councilman Broadaway 
made a motion to accept the offer on 324 S. James Street at the stated value. There was no second. Council 
rejected the item.  

Councilwoman Jones made a motion to recess the meeting and reconvene at 7:00 for the meeting. The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried.  There being no further business, the 
meeting recessed at 5:46 pm.  



3 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in regular session in Council Chambers, 
City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on March 7, 2022. 

Mayor Pro Tem Polack called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

Father David Wyly with St. Stephens Episcopal Church provided the invocation.  Following the Pledge of 
Allegiance, the National Anthem was performed by the Goldsboro High School Showstoppers. 

Roll Call. 

Present: Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack, Presiding 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones  
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews 
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV 

Absent: Mayor David Ham 
Councilman Gene Aycock 

Also Present:  Tim Salmon, City Manager 
            Laura Getz, City Clerk 

Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 

Approval of Minutes.  Councilman Broadaway made a motion to approve the minutes of the Work 
Session and Regular Meeting of February 7, 2022. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and 
unanimously carried.  

Presentations. 
Resolution Recognizing Brandi Matthews as the First African American Woman Elected to the 

Goldsboro City Council. Resolution Adopted. Brandi Matthews made history when she was elected to the 
Goldsboro City Council on November 5, 2019, becoming the first African American council woman. 
Councilwoman Matthews is only the second woman ever elected to serve on City Council. Councilwoman 
Matthews serves the citizens of District 4 with pride, and she is committed to using her platform to make an 
impact in her community and throughout the city of Goldsboro. Long before running for public office, 
Councilwoman Matthews has been actively involved in the community. She is the Founder of The Blessing Box 
of Goldsboro, Founder of Perfectly Imperfect, Inc. (Organization for Teen Girls aged 12-18). She is the creator 
of the Association of Black Women in Politics, a 10-year Adopt-A-Highway participant (Royal & Spruce 
Avenue to Royal Avenue & William Street), and member of the Goldsboro/Wayne Branch of NAACP. 
Councilwoman Matthews often says, "There is gold in Goldsboro." Her accomplishments and dedication to 
service are a shining example of those words. We salute Councilwoman Matthews for her history-making 
achievements and for her continued work for the residents of Goldsboro. The Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Goldsboro, North Carolina acknowledge and recognize the significant contributions made by 
Councilwoman Matthews to the City of Goldsboro.  

Upon motion of Councilman Broadaway, seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried, Council 
adopted the following entitled Resolution. 

RESOLUTION 2022-10 “RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING BRANDI MATTHEWS AS THE FIRST AFRICAN 
AMERICAN WOMAN ELECTED TO THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL” 

Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Demetrius Speight as an Employee 
of the City of Goldsboro for More Than 24 Years. Resolution Adopted. Demetrius Speight retired on March 
1, 2022 as a Solid Waste Technician with the Public Works Department of the City of Goldsboro with more than 
24 years of service. Demetrius began his career on December 31, 1997 as a Laborer I with the Public Works 
Department. O On December 9, 1998, Demetrius was promoted to Laborer II with the Public Works 
Department. On August 1, 2007, Demetrius’ position was reclassified as Sanitation Worker with the Public 
Works Department. On January 8, 2014, Demetrius’ position was reclassified as Sanitation Technician with the 
Public Works Department. On September 13, 2017, Demetrius’ position was reclassified as Solid Waste 
Technician with the Public Works Department where he has served until his retirement. Demetrius has proven 



4 

himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained the admiration and respect of his fellow 
workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro. The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are 
desirous, on behalf of themselves, City employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to 
Demetrius Speight their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the 
years and express to Demetrius our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity, and good health in his 
future endeavors. 

Upon motion of Councilman Gaylor, seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried, Council 
adopted the following entitled Resolution. 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-11 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY 
DEMETRIUS SPEIGHT AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 24 YEARS” 

FY19-20 Audit Presentation. John Frank and Chad Cooke with Dixon Hughes Goodman shared the 
following presentation: 



5 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Council discussed the audit and upcoming audit timetable with Mr. Cook and Mr. Frank.  

 
Annual Community Assessment of CPD Program Performance: 2020 CAPER. Felecia Williams, 

Community Relations Director, shared she is here to address HUD’s assessment of the 2020 CAPER and the 
city’s response. 

• At least 70% of all annual expenditures must benefit low/moderate income individuals.  Goldsboro used 
98.24% of its entitlement expenditures and 0% of its CDBG-CV expenditures for Program Year 2020; 
however, the CDBG-CV funds must meet this requirement based on the overall total CDBG-CV funds 
expended. 
Response: In the current and future program years, the City of Goldsboro will ensure that funded activities 
will benefit low/moderate income individuals at the required 70% for CDBG. 

 
• Goldsboro overdrew on the 20% planning and administrative cap for CDBG in Program Year 2019 by 

10.73%, for a total amount of $38,528.64.   
Response: The City of Goldsboro’s Finance Department processed the electronic wire transfer on 
Thursday, January 13, 2022, repaying the amount of $38,528.64. 
 

• Goldsboro must spend an additional $31,037 of CDBG funds between now and May 2, 2022 in order to 
pass the required timeliness test.  Grantees are considered timely if they have no more than the equivalent 
of 1.5 times the most recent grant in the account 60 days prior to the end of the program year. 
Response: The City of Goldsboro is on track to spend the $31,037 by providing Public Service grants 
and/or and/or potentially funding a public facilities project.   

 
• The CAPER is to be submitted within 90 days of the end of the Grantee’s program year.  Goldsboro’s 

program year ends June 30th, therefore the CAPER deadline is September 28th of each year.  Goldsboro’s 
2020 CAPER did not meet this requirement. 
Response: The City of Goldsboro’s CAPER was submitted on September 30, 2021.  Staff inadvertently 
counted business days for 3 calendar months as the 90-day count and did not count the weekend days.  Staff 
will ensure that the document will be submitted in accordance with the September 28th deadline in the 
future. 
 

• HUD requires the Grantee to commit 15% of funds in its HOME fund account for certified CHDO’s 
(Community Housing Development Organization), within two years of receipt of funds.  Goldsboro’s 
program has met these requirements for Program Year 2020, however, it is noted that Goldsboro has yet 
to reserve $32,290.80 in the 2019 grant year.   
Response: The City of Goldsboro has reached out to HUD/Greensboro Field Office for technical assistance 
and learned that the deadline for the Program Year 2019 CHDO reservation was August 31, 2021.  The 
City’s one certified CHDO is Habitat for Humanity of Wayne County.  We will continue to work with 
HUD staff to ensure the reservation is made by the end of this week, no later than January 21, 2022.   

 
• HOME Open Activities: #684, #687, #691-The HOME regulations require that activities be completed 

within 120 days of final draw.  HUD’s open activity report indicates that Goldsboro has three activities in 
IDIS which have an extended number of days from the last draw (#684 - 457 days, #687 – 229 days, and 
#691 – 219 days).  Goldsboro should review these activities and close them in IDIS as applicable. 
Response:  
Activity #684- Completed and closed on January 6, 2022.   
Activity #687-Completed and closed on January 10, 2022.   
Activity #691-Unable to complete/close at this time.  This activity requires further research and 
consultations with City staff.  It is anticipated that this activity could be closed soon.  The City of Goldsboro 
will provide a follow up on the status of this activity, no later than Tuesday, February 15, 2022.   

Council discussed the 2020 CAPER.  



6 
 
 
 
 

 Public Hearing.  
 Public Hearing to Consider a Proposal to Provide Economic Incentives to the Mount Olive Pickle 
Company. Item Deferred. The Mount Olive Pickle Company has been in business in Mount Olive since 1926. 
Pursuant to NC General Statue 158-7.1, a public hearing is being held on a proposal for the City of Goldsboro to 
provide economic incentives to the Mount Olive Pickle Company, Inc. totaling $600,000 over a ten-year period 
based on a performance agreement with a $45,450,000 investment and the creation of 167 full-time jobs in 
Goldsboro.   
 
Mount Olive Pickle Company, Inc. will incur costs in purchasing facilities and adding machinery and equipment 
to such facilities, and the County and City will realize economic benefits due to the expansion of the ad valorem 
tax base and the creation of employment opportunities for the citizens thereof.   
 
Mount Olive Pickle Company, Inc.'s expansion in Goldsboro depends in part on the support of the NC 
Department of Commerce $22 million grant for utility infrastructure, the County, and City in terms of incentives, 
including, but not limited to, adequate water and wastewater infrastructure and financial grants. 
 
A grant by the County and the City to the Mount Olive Pickle Company, Inc. in the amount of One Million Two 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,200,000) would be an incentive for such investment by the Mount Olive Pickle 
Company, Inc. to assist the same pay a portion of the costs of the investment, and that such incentives be 
designated as an “Economic Development Grant”. 
  
Following the public hearing and depending on comments received, staff recommended Council adopt the 
following entitled Resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute a performance agreement with the 
Mount Olive Pickle Company, Inc.   
 
Mark Pope with the Wayne County Development Alliance shared information regarding the Mount Olive Pickle 
Company and the proposed economic incentives.  
 
Council discussed the proposed economic incentives to the Mount Olive Pickle Company.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Polack opened the public hearing and the following people spoke: 
 

1. Carl Martin shared comments regarding transparency, public transportation, Wayne County Development 
Alliance Board of Directors, revenue, and water and sewer expectations.   

2. Dr. David Craig shared comments regarding the proposed Economic Development Agreement and the 
lack of a wastewater system assessment. He also shared comments regarding American Rescue Plan 
funds, and Item I-Professional Engineering On-Call Services for Water Treatment Plant Structural 
Assessment. 

 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Polack requested further information regarding concerns made by residents. Mayor Pro Tem 
Polack requested the item be tabled to the next meeting. 
 
Council discussed meeting notifications.       
 
Mark Pope with the Wayne County Development Alliance shared comments regarding concerns made by 
Council and residents. 
 
Councilman Gaylor made a motion that the item be moved to the next meeting agenda. Councilwoman Jones 
seconded the motion. Mayor Pro Tem Polack, Councilwoman Jones, Councilwoman Matthews, and Councilman 
Gaylor voted for the motion. Councilman Broadaway voted against the motion. The motion passed 4:1.  
 

Public Comment Period.  Mayor Pro Tem Polack opened the public comment period.  The following 
people spoke: 

 
1. Christopher Smith shared concerns regarding issues at Goldsboro High School.  
2. Desiree Thomas shared concerns regarding issues at Goldsboro High School.  
3. Maria Newsome shared concerns regarding issues at Goldsboro High School.  
4. Willie Baptiste shared comments regarding Goldsboro and concerns regarding a neighboring 

property. 
 



7 

No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.  

Consent Agenda - Approved as Recommended. City Manager Tim Salmon presented the Consent 
Agenda.  All items were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a 
roll call vote.  If a Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
discussed and considered separately.  In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted 
on with one motion and roll call vote.  Councilwoman Jones moved that Item K, Authorization of Sale of 
Substandard Lot to Adjacent Property Owner under Session Law 2004-94 (Senate Bill 1370) for 324 S. James 
Street (Pyramid Management Team, LLC) be moved to Items Requiring Action for further discussion. The 
remainder of items on the Consent Agenda, Items G, H, I, J, L, and M were approved as recommended by staff. 
The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor, a roll call vote resulted in Mayor Pro Tem Polack, 
Councilwoman Jones, Councilman Broadaway, Councilman Gaylor voting in favor of the motion. 
Councilwoman Matthews voted against the motion. The consent agenda was approved as amended with a 4:1 
vote.    

The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows: 

43rd Annual Greater Goldsboro Road Run – Temporary Street Closing. Approved. An application 
was received from the Sunrise Kiwanis of Goldsboro, requesting permission to hold their 43rd Annual Greater 
Goldsboro Road Run on Saturday, April 9, 2022 from 7:00 a.m. to 11:30 a.m.  

The race is scheduled to begin at Spruce Street on Center Street and end between Chestnut Street and Spruce 
Street on Center Street and runs through the downtown area of Walnut Street, Evergreen Street, and Andrews 
Street, Berry Street, Claiborne Street, Mulberry Street, and Pine Street.  The Police, Fire, Public Works and 
Downtown Goldsboro offices have been notified of this request. 

The race has three race routes they will be using for the 10K, 5K, and 1-mile runs.  All three routes will start and 
finish in the same area and will have staggered start times. The time requested for the closing is from 7:00 a.m. 
to 11:00 a.m.  

Staff recommends approval of this request subject to the following conditions: 
1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.
2. A 14-foot fire lane is maintained in the center of the street to provide access for fire and emergency

vehicles.
3. All activities, changes in plans, etc. will be coordinated with the Police Department.
4. The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Goldsboro offices are to be involved in the logistical

aspects of this event.

It was recommended that the Council approve the street closing of sections of Center Street at Pine Street, 
Spruce Street, Chestnut Street, Walnut Street, and Mulberry Street for the 43rd Annual Greater Goldsboro Road 
Run event 7:00 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. on Saturday, April 9, 2022.  Consent Agenda Approval. Jones/Gaylor (4 
Ayes: 1 Nay) 

Professional Engineering On-Call Services for Water Treatment Plant Structural Assessment. 
Resolution Adopted. WithersRavenel, The Wooten Company, and CDM Smith, Inc. were selected for on-call 
engineering services for various engineering projects relating to Water Treatment & Distribution, Wastewater 
Treatment & Distribution, Stormwater, Transportation, and Construction Inspection. 

Staff requested WithersRavenel provide costs in reference to structural assessment for the City of Goldsboro 
Water Treatment Plant. 

WithersRavenel engineering services detailed as follows: 

Project Management  $  2,000 
Destructive Testing  $10,000 
Structural Assessment and 
Recommendation Report $14,500 
Total  $26,500 

We have reviewed the financing of this project with the Finance Director and determined that funds are available 
from the Water Plant Utility Fund/Consultant Fees which contains sufficient monies to authorize professional 
engineering services with WithersRavenel for the Water Treatment Plant Structural Assessment. 



8 
 
 
 
 

 
It was recommend that Council adopt the following entitled Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute 
a Professional Engineering Services Agreement with WithersRavenel pertaining to Water Treatment Plant 
Structural Assessment for an amount not to exceed $26,500.  Consent Agenda Approval. Jones/Gaylor (4 Ayes: 
1 Nay) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-12 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF PROFESSIONAL 
ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH WITHERSRAVENEL FOR WATER TREATMENT PL1ANT 
STRUCTURAL ASSESSMENT” 
 

Contract Award for Ash Street Corridor Study. Resolution Adopted.  The City of Goldsboro, the 
Lead Planning Agency for the Goldsboro MPO, requested qualifications to assist in the development of the Ash 
Street Corridor, which will assist city staff in proposing potential new concepts to improve access management, 
increase safety along the corridor and potentially secure funding opportunities in the future for recommended 
improvements. 

 
Eight consulting firms submitted qualifications and the Selection Committee consisting of Kenny Talton, 
Planning Director, Bobby Croom, Engineering Director, Berry Gray, Wayne County Planning Director, Sam 
Lawhorn, NCDOT District Engineer and Jennifer Collins, NCDOT Division 4 Development Corridor Engineer 
reviewed each firm’s submittal. Submittals were evaluated on six criteria: 

 
1. Project Experience; 
2. Project Manager; 
3. Project Team; 
4. Project Approach; 
5. Technical Expertise; and, 
6. Reference 

 
Upon review, the Selection Committee’s compiled evaluations indicated that Kittelson & Associates ranked 
highest of the eight submittals. 

 
On February 10, 2022, Staff presented their recommendation to the Goldsboro MPO TCC and TAC for their 
approval.  They recommended and approved the selection of Kittelson & Associates for this task. 

 
In order to evaluate the Ash Street Corridor between George Street and Berkeley Boulevard for potential road 
diet resulting in a comprehensive access management plan for the corridor, Kittelson & Associates has proposed 
a total contract fee of: 

 
 Contract for Services     $139,922.82 
 City of Goldsboro (+/- 20%)     $  27,984.56 
 NCDOT PL 104 funds (+/- 80%)    $111,938.26 
 

Kittelson & Associates is certified by NCDOT and has been providing transportation planning and engineering 
services to municipal and state clients for over 35 years.  Kittelson’s Wilmington, NC office will be the primary 
office to serve Goldsboro MPO and brings robust project management and technical knowledge, a high-level of 
experience in multimodal and long-range transportation planning, and strong communication, public outreach, 
and consensus building skills.  Some of Kittelson’s specialty services include a performance-based design 
approach, roundabout design and operations, travel demand modeling and traffic simulation, GIS mapping, 
development and application services, crosswalk and bicycle facility design, and innovative stakeholder 
engagement.       
 
The fee proposal for this project has been reviewed by the Planning Department and North Carolina Department 
of Transportation, checked for accuracy, and found to be in order.  We have also reviewed the financing of this 
project with the Finance Director.  Sufficient funds are available for this project with 80% of the project being 
eligible for the use of PL 104 funds and reimbursed by NCDOT. 

  
The study is expected to begin in March 2022 with a final plan for consideration in January 2023.  Through the 
planning process there will be two opportunities for public involvement, three Steering Committee meetings and 
presentations to the Goldsboro MPO TCC and TAC.      

 



9 

It was recommended that Council adopt a Resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute a contract 
in the amount of $139,922.82 with Kittelson & Associates, for the Ash Street Corridor Study. Consent Agenda 
Approval. Jones/Gaylor (4 Ayes: 1 Nay) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022–13 “RESOLUTION AWARDING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 
OF A CONTRACT FOR THE ASH STREET CORRIDOR STUDY” 

Request Authorization to Purchase Cameras Based on Standardization and Compatibility 
Requirements. Resolution Adopted. General Statute 143-129(e)(6)(iii) states exceptions to the state 
competitive bidding requirements are allowed for the purchase of apparatus, supplies, materials or equipment 
when standardization or compatibility is the overriding consideration.  

Two replacement robotic cameras were authorized to be purchased for the Distributions and Collections Division 
during the FY21/22 budget process for $140K.  The cameras are used to conduct required inspections of the 
City’s sanitary sewer system.  The current camera system and software were purchased through RedZone 
Robotics, LLC, which is a proprietary system and incompatible with other robotic camera systems and software 
packages.  To maintain compatibility and ensure continued access to camera footage previously obtained, we 
will need to maintain the current standard and purchase RedZone Robotic replacement cameras.       

It was recommended that Council approve purchasing two RedZone Robotic cameras in order to standardize 
equipment and maintain compatibility per G.S. 143-129(e)(6). Consent Agenda Approval. Jones/Gaylor (4 Ayes: 
1 Nay) 

RESOLUTION 2022-14 “RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO STANDARDIZE ROBOTIC CAMERA SYSTEM” 

 Amend Contract for Audit Services for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020. Resolution Adopted. 
City Council approved the audit contract for FY2020 on May 17, 2021, after the FY2019 audit was completed. 

The financial audit has been completed and issued. The auditors have requested a final amendment in order to 
close out this engagement, and the Local Government Commission requires the Council approve all extensions 
of time. 

It was recommended that Council approve the following entitled resolution to amend the contract for the 
auditing services for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2020 to Dixon Hughes Goodman, LLP for the completion 
date of March 7, 2022. Consent Agenda Approval. Jones/Gaylor (4 Ayes: 1 Nay) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-15 “A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT 
AMENDMENT NO. 1 BETWEEN THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO AND DIXON HUGHES GOODMAN, LLP FOR 
THE EXTENSION OF THE AUDIT OF CITY’S ACCOUNTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 
2020” 

Award contract for audit services for fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 to Dixon Hughes Goodman 
LLP. G.S. §159-34. Resolution Adopted.  Annual independent audit, requires each local government to have its 
accounts audited as soon as possible after the close of each fiscal year by a certified public accountant.  The 
auditor shall be selected by, and shall report directly to the governing board.     

In May, 2019 the City conducted a request for qualifications and a request for proposal for audit services for 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, and selected Dixon Hughes Goodman, LLP.   

The cost of the audit as per the proposal is: 
Fy2020 $53,200 
Fy2021 $54,500 
Fy2022 $55,800 

Dixon, Hughes, Goodman, LLP (the firm) is active and in good standing with the North Carolina State Board of 
Certified Public Accountant Examiners.  The partner in charge, John Frank, CPA, is also in active good standing 
with the same as a Certified Public Accountant.  They have a current peer review and have provided insurance 
information, Form W9 and e-verify compliance. 

Once approved by City Council, the contract will be executed and sent to the Local Government Commission for 
final approval before any field work can commence on the FY21 audit.  



10 
 
 
 
 

It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing the award for contract for 
audit services for fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 to Dixon, Hughes, Goodman, LLP. Consent Agenda 
Approval. Jones/Gaylor (4 Ayes: 1 Nay)            
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-16 “RESOLUTION APPROVING DIXON HUGHES GOODMAN LLP AS OFFICIAL 
AUDITOR OF THE CITY’S ACCOUNTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2021” 

 
End of Consent Agenda. 
 
Items Requiring Individual Action. 
Establishing and adopting mandatory Uniform Guidance Policies for the American Rescue Plan 

Act of 2021 (R1107). Resolutions Adopted. On March 11, 2021 the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARP) 
was signed into law by President Biden.  The $1.88 trillion dollar coronavirus relief package allocated $350 
billion dollars in state and local fiscal recovery funds of which $2.034 billion dollars was allocated directly to 
North Carolina counties and $1.3 billion dollars was allocated to municipalities.  There is no match required for 
the grant.  The City of Goldsboro, as an entitlement city, will receive a total of $8,813,514 directly from the 
federal government as part of the $1.3 billion dollar allocation to North Carolina municipalities. The funds will 
be disbursed in two tranches with 50% provided in May, 2021 and the second delivered 12 months later.  Funds 
must be spent by December 31, 2024, unless an extension of time is granted by the federal government.  On May 
17, 2021, City Council formally accepted the federal grant funds, and named staff as authorized representative to 
request the funding from the U.S. Treasury. On June 21, 2021, City Council authorized the creation of a grant 
project ordinance to track the $8.8M allocation to the City.   

  
At this time, staff recommends that the City Council establish and adopt mandatory Uniform Guidance Policies 
for the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 to ensure that all federal compliance requirements are met so that the 
City may execute the authorized programs to spend the $8.8M grant. 

 
At the February 22, 2022 Council Retreat, City Council authorized staff to use the Standard Allowance for 
revenue replacement for the entire $8.8M grant, and all funds could be allocated towards General Government 
Services salaries and benefits.  This was done to help simplify the Uniform Guidance requirements to ensure that 
the $8.8M grant could be managed in the most cost efficient manner. 

 
At this time, it is necessary for Council to adopt the following mandatory resolutions and policies: 

1. Allowable Costs and Cost Principles Policy 
2. Eligible Project Policy  
3. Financial Management and Internal Controls Policy 
4. Records Retention Policy 
5. Nondiscrimination Policy 
6. Conflict of Interest Policy (Adopted in the current Procurement Policy) 
 

Additional policies, not required but highly recommended: 
1. Program Income Policy 
2. Property Management 
 

It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled resolutions and recommended policies necessary 
to execute the program requirements for the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021. 
 
Councilman Broadaway made a motion to approve to establish and adopt mandatory uniform guidance policy for 
the American Rescue Plan of 2021. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor. After discussion with the 
Finance Director, the vote was unanimously carried.     
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-17 “RESOLUTION ADOPTING POLICIES FOR ALLOWABLE COSTS AND COSTS 
PRINCIPLES POLICY ELIGIBLE PROJECT POLICY FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL 
CONTROLS AND RECORD RETENTION FOR THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT CORONAVIRUS 
STATE AND LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS BY NORTH CAROLINA LOCAL GOVERNMENTS” 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-18 “RESOLUTION ADOPTING NONDISCRIMINATION POLICY FOR THE 
AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT CORONAVIRUS STATE AND LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS BY 
NORTH CAROLINA LOCAL GOVERNMENTS” 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-19 “RESOLUTION ADOPTING POLICY FOR PROGRAM INCOME FOR THE 



11 
 
 
 
 

AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT CORONAVIRUS STATE AND LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS BY 
NORTH CAROLINA LOCAL GOVERNMENTS” 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-20 “RESOLUTION ADOPTING POLICY FOR PROPERTY MANAGEMENT 
RELATED TO THE EXPENDITURE FOR THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT CORONAVIRUS STATE 
AND LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS BY NORTH CAROLINA LOCAL GOVERNMENTS” 
 

Amending a Grant Project Fund Ordinance -American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (R1107). 
Ordinance Adopted. On March 11, 2021 the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARP) was signed into law by 
President Biden.  The $1.88 trillion dollar coronavirus relief package allocated $350 billion dollars in state and 
local fiscal recovery funds of which $2.034 billion dollars was allocated directly to North Carolina counties and 
$1.3 billion dollars was allocated to municipalities.  There is no match required for the grant.  The City of 
Goldsboro, as an entitlement city, will receive a total of $8,813,514 directly from the federal government as part 
of the $1.3 billion dollar allocation to North Carolina municipalities. The funds will be disbursed in two tranches 
with 50% provided in May, 2021 and the second delivered 12 months later.  Funds must be spent by December 
31, 2024, unless an extension of time is granted by the federal government.  On May 17, 2021, City Council 
formally accepted the federal grant funds, and named staff as authorized representative to request the funding 
from the U.S. Treasury.  On June 21, 2021, City Council authorized the creation of a grant project ordinance to 
track the $8.8M allocation to the City. 

  
At the February 22, 2022 Council Retreat, City Council authorized staff to use the Standard Allowance for 
revenue replacement for the entire $8.8M grant, and all funds could be allocated towards General Government 
Services salaries and benefits.  This was done to help simplify the Uniform Guidance requirements to ensure that 
the $8.8M grant could be managed in the most cost efficient manner.  At this time, staff recommends that the 
City amend the grant project fund to authorize staff to make this election, in order to begin fulfilling the terms of 
the grant. 

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled amendment to the grant project ordinance for the 
American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 Special Revenue Fund. 
 
Councilman Broadaway made a motion to amend the grant project fund ordinance American Rescue Plan of 
2021. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried.     

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-7 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR THE  
AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT OF 2021 (ARP) SPECIAL REVENUE FUND (R1107)” 
 

Authorization of Sale of Substandard Lot to Adjacent Property Owner Under Session Law 2004-94 
(Senate Bill 1370) for 324 S. James Street (Pyramid Management Team, LLC). Resolution Adopted. Staff 
has received an offer to purchase on a city-owned property deemed a substandard lot. Council must either accept 
or reject the offer, and if accepted authorize City officials to execute instruments necessary to transfer ownership. 
(Session Law 2004-94 Senate Bill 1370) 
 
The following offer has been received: 
324 S. James Street 
Offeror: Pyramid Management Team, LLC 
Offer: $1.00 
Bid Deposit: $1.00 
Parcel #: 47592 Pin #: 2599840631 
Tax Value: $1,590.00 Zoning: 10-Commercial 
 
This is a substandard lot sale, therefore the minimum offer is $1.00. The Planning Department stated that the 
Offeror is the only adjacent property owner, and therefore no other notification has been given. The earnest 
money deposit of $1.00 has been received in cash. 
 
The corporation making the offer is current and active with the North Carolina Secretary of State. 
 
It was recommended that Council accept an offer on 324 S. James Street and adopt the following entitled 
resolution authorizing City officials to execute instruments necessary to transfer ownership to Pyramid 
Management Team, LLC. 
 
Councilwoman Jones made a motion to accept the offer that was made. The motion was seconded by 
Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried.     



12 

Councilwoman Jones made a motion to accept the resolution as previously stated. The motion was seconded by 
Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried.     

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-21 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF SURPLUS SUBSTANDARD REAL 
PROPERTY UNDER SESSION LAW 2004-94 SENATE BILL 1370” 

City Manager’s Report.  City Manager Salmon shared information regarding face coverings guidance, 
and COVID cases. He also shared information regarding the upcoming Community Relations and Development 
meeting and the Citizens Academy.   

Ceremonial Documents. 
Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Franklin Boswell, Jr. as an 

Employee of the City of Goldsboro for More Than 22 Years. Resolution Adopted. Franklin D. Boswell 
retired on March 1, 2022 as an Interim Engineer with the Goldsboro Fire Department of the City of Goldsboro 
with more than 22 years of service. Franklin began his career on February 23, 2000 as a Firefighter with the 
Goldsboro Fire Department. On June 21, 2017, Franklin was promoted to Senior Firefighter with the Goldsboro 
Fire Department. On December 15, 2021, Franklin was promoted to the position of Interim Engineer with the 
Goldsboro Fire Department where he has served until his retirement. Franklin has proven himself to be a 
dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the 
citizens of the City of Goldsboro. The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf 
of themselves, City employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Franklin D. Boswell 
their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years and express to 
Franklin our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity, and good health in his future endeavors. 

Councilman Broadaway made a motion to adopt the resolution. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman 
Jones and unanimously carried.     

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-22 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY 
FRANKLIN D. BOSWELL AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 22 
YEARS” 

Developmental Disabilities Awareness Month Proclamation. Read by Councilwoman Jones; Taj 
Polack, Mayor Pro Tem proclaimed March 2022 as DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES AWARENESS 
MONTH and galvanized efforts that will lead our communities and policy makers to create real system changes 
so people with developmental disabilities will enjoy equitable, inclusive lives. 

Women In Construction Week Proclamation. Read by Councilwoman Jones; Taj Polack, Mayor Pro 
Tem recognized the Greater Greenville NC Chapter #335 and its many dedicated volunteers for its steadfast 
work on behalf and support of women in construction, and proudly proclaimed the week of March 6-12, 2022 as 
WOMEN IN CONSTRUCTION WEEK and encouraged our citizens to congratulate the organization on its 
many accomplishments. 

Women’s History Month Proclamation. Read by Councilwoman Matthews; Taj Polack, Mayor Pro 
Tem proclaimed the month of March 2022 as WOMEN’S HISTORY MONTH in the City of Goldsboro and 
encouraged all citizens to observe this month by participating in and supporting all activities celebrating 
contributions of women. 

Brain Injury Awareness Month Proclamation. Read by Councilman Gaylor; Taj Polack, Mayor Pro 
Tem proclaimed March 2022, as BRAIN INJURY AWARENESS MONTH in Goldsboro, North Carolina and 
called upon our citizens and interested groups to observe the month with appropriate ceremonies and activities 
that promote awareness and prevention of brain injuries. 

Councilman Broadaway left the meeting at 9:05 pm. 

Mayor and Councilmembers’ Comments.  
Councilwoman Jones shared comments regarding a Black History event that she attended at the Boys and 

Girls Club.    

Councilman Matthews thanked Mayor Pro Tem Polack for her acknowledgement and shared comments 
regarding women/black women in politics. She also shared comments regarding Day Circle (Grand at Day 
Point). She thanked the students from Goldsboro High School for speaking and offered to attend the Wayne 
County Board meeting with them. Councilwoman Matthews shared information for District 4 residents.    



q

Qcd

2?

k 

k

2 

27mo2
o % * 

9b0

3

e  

2 § 

2

0

2

22§ 

J-

5 / 

v0

64 '

G

0U

0-
4 ° 

k / 

Cd

J

2 [ 

o

k

2

U



1 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
MARCH 21, 2022 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Council Chambers, City 
Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on March 21, 2022.   

Call to Order.  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call. 
Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews 
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  
Councilman Gene Aycock  

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 

Adoption of the Agenda.  Mayor Ham requested the addition of an item under Old Business, Review of COVID 
Mask Policy. Upon motion of Councilman Broadaway, seconded by Councilman Aycock, and unanimously carried, Council 
adopted the agenda as amended.  

Old Business. 
Review of COVID Mask Policy. Mayor Ham referenced the Governor’s most recent report, and recommended 

changing the current mask policy to make masks optional in all City facilities and vehicles for employees and visitors.  

Council discussed the mask policy and COVID. Councilman Broadaway made a motion to change the mask policy to 
optional. The motion was seconded by Councilman Aycock. Mayor Ham, and Councilmembers Jones, Broadaway, Gaylor, 
and Aycock voted for the motion. Mayor Pro Tem Polack and Councilwoman Matthews voted against the motion. The motion 
passed 5:2.  

New Business. 
309 Walnut Street Sewer Issue. Zachary E. Lilly discussed the sewer issues at 309 West Walnut Street. He stated 

that the issue has been ongoing since 2017. Mr. Lilly shared that the City had previously stated they would replace/repair 
the line if the surrounding property owners granted easements or the work to be completed. He stated that permission to 
enter/access property has been provided by all owners of surrounding properties. Mr. Lilly is requesting that the City take 
responsibility and fix the problem. Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director, stated that the line is private and there is no record 
that the City installed a line across the properties. He clarified facts for Council. Ron Lawrence, City Attorney, confirmed 
that the City does not have the right to maintain a private line on a private property.  

Council discussed the sewer issue. Councilman Broadaway made a motion to defer the issue until the April 4, 2022 
Council meeting so that further research could be conducted. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and 
unanimously carried.  

NCLM Voting Delegate. Councilman Aycock made a motion to designate City Manager Tim Salmon as the voting 
delegate for the NCLM Board of Directors election. The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously 
carried.  

Utility Rates. Council discussed raising utility rates. The average increase to individual water bills was stated for 
increases ranging from 5-20%. The following information was presented.   

Item A.2



2 
 

  

  

 

 
 
 Councilwoman Matthews suggested using ARPA funds instead of raising utility rates. The need for a customer 
assistance/hardship program was also discussed. Council proposed establishing a hardship account and/or establishing a 
commission at the next meeting. Council discussed the criteria to consider for citizens to qualify for hardship once a 
commission is established. Councilwoman Matthews requested information be sent to Council stating were the money from 
the 17.5% increase was spent.  
 
Councilman Broadaway made a motion to increase utility rates by 20%. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor.  
Mayor Ham, Mayor Pro Tem Polack, and Councilmembers Broadaway, Aycock, and Gaylor voted for the motion. 
Councilmembers Matthews and Jones voted against the motion. The motion passed 5:2. 

 
NPO Support. Options were discussed to determine who will decide how money is to be dispersed to local non-

profit organizations. Councilman Broadaway stated that the United Way could vet the organizations to determine the 
legitimacy and need of the organizations. Councilwoman Matthews expressed concern that many worthy organizations may 
be overlooked by the United Way.  

 
Councilman Gaylor made a motion to table the discussion to the April 4, 2022 Council Meeting. The motion was 

seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried.  
 
GWTA Board Appointment. Councilwoman Jones made a motion to table the discussion to the April 4, 2022 

Council Meeting. The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Polack and unanimously carried.  
 

There being no further business, the meeting recessed until 7:00 p.m.  



3 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 
214 North Center Street, at 7:01 p.m. on March 21, 2022. 
 
Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 
 
Archbishop Anthony Slater, Tehillah Church Ministries provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews  
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  
Councilman Gene Aycock  
 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Holly Jones, Deputy City Clerk 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 

  
Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion to clarify that the utility rate increase was for FY 22-23. The motion was 

seconded by Councilman Gaylor. Mayor Ham, Mayor Pro Tem Polack, and Councilmembers, Broadaway, Gaylor, and 
Aycock voted for the motion. Councilmembers Jones and Matthews voted against the motion. The motion passed 5:2. 

 
Approval of Minutes.  Councilman Broadaway made a motion to approve the minutes of the Council Retreat of 

February 21-22, 2022, and the minutes of the Joint Meeting of March 1, 2022. The motion was seconded by Councilman 
Aycock and unanimously carried.   

 
Presentations. 
Resolution in Support and Honor of the People of Ukraine and the Men and Women Assigned to Seymour 

Johnson Air Force Base. Resolution adopted. On February 24, 2022, Russia, ignoring international law, territorial 
boundaries and humanitarian values, did without provocation, launch a full-scale invasion of the peaceful, independent and 
sovereign nation of Ukraine. Such unprovoked actions have caused the death of thousands of innocent Ukrainian men, 
women, and children. Additional millions of Ukrainian women and children were forced to leave their homes to seek safety 
in neighboring countries leaving behind their husbands and sons to valiantly defend their homeland and fend off the 
invading Russian forces who with complete disregard of humanitarian value have unleashed severe and deliberate 
destruction and death upon the land. Men and women of the United States Air Force assigned to Seymour Johnson Air 
Force Base in Goldsboro, North Carolina have deployed to various locations throughout Europe to prevent further Russian 
aggression that might extend upon those countries. Those deploying airmen leave behind spouses, children and other loved 
ones to bear the burden and sacrifices of the known and unknown as they wait, for the duration of this tragic war has no 
timetable to end. The City of Goldsboro, North Carolina offers moral support and recognition for the bravery, courage and 
dedication to the people of Ukraine as they stand firm and defiantly against the invading Russian regime. The City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina, the proud home of Seymour Johnson Air Force base, recognizes the bravery, dedication to 
service and commitment of its uniformed men and women as they stand ready for any mission given and also to their loved 
ones here in the Goldsboro area who await their safe reunion. This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes 
of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full force and effect from and after this 21st day of March, 2022. 

 
Upon motion by Mayor Pro Tem Polack, seconded by Councilwoman Jones, and unanimously carried, Council 

adopted the following entitled Resolution. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 23 “RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT AND HONOR OF THE PEOPLE OF UKRAINE AND 

THE MEN AND WOMEN ASSIGNED TO SEYMOUR JOHNSON AIR FORCE BASE” 
 
Eagle Scout Jonah Williams Recognition.  Councilman Aycock presented Jonah Williams with a certificate in 

recognition of achieving the rank of Eagle Scout.  
 
Redistricting Maps. Marshall Hurley (Marshall Hurley PLLC), Caroline Mackie (Poyner-Spruill), and Bill Gilkeson 

presented the following information for options for Goldsboro Redistricting.  
 



4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6 
 

 
 
Public Hearings.  
Z-1-22 Angelita Morrisroe – East of N. William Street between Wilson St. and E. US 70 Hwy. service road and 

within the corporate City limits. Public Hearing Held. The applicant is requesting a change of zone from Residential 
(R6) to General Business (GB) for two (2) private lots which are of continuous frontage and under single ownership within 
the Residential (R6) zoning district. 

 If approved, the owner will be required to recombine the lots into one for commercial development purposes 
meeting the requirements of the General Business (GB) zoning district.   

Frontage: 92 ft. (Wilson St.) 

  90 ft. (E. Hwy. 70 SR)  

Area: 18,030 sq. ft. or 0.41 acres 

SURROUNDING ZONING: 

North:  Residential (R-6) 

East: Residential (R-6) 

West: General Business (GBCZ) 

One of the two private lots is currently vacant.  The other lot is occupied by a single-family dwelling. 

The City’s Land Use Plan recommends High-Density Residential development for the property. 

City water and sewer are available to serve the property.  The subject property is not located in a Special Flood 
Hazard Area.  Grading and drainage plans may be required.  

Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing and the following person spoke: 

1.  Sergio Sanchez spoke in favor of the rezoning. He stated they have done much cleaning up on the property, 
and are trying to make Goldsboro a better place.  

 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed.  

No action necessary. The Planning Commission will have a recommendation at the Council meeting on April 4, 2022. 

Z-2-22 Eastern Hill, Inc. – South side of E. Elm Street between Crawford St. and Beale St. and within the 
corporate City limits. Public Hearing Held. The applicant is requesting a change of zone from Residential (R6) to 
General Business (GB) for three (3) private lots which are of continuous frontage and under single ownership within the 
Residential (R6) zoning district. 

 If approved, the owner will be required to recombine the lots into one for commercial development purposes 
meeting the requirements of the General Business (GB) zoning district.  

 In addition, a variance will be required for one of the three lots consisting of an existing non-conforming 
commercial building which does not meet the required front setback of 20ft. along E. Elm, Crawford and Hugh St. 

Frontage: 159.4 ft. (E. Elm St.), 97.3 ft. (Crawford St.) and 146.3 ft. (Hugh St.) 

Area: 14,385 sq. ft. or 0.33 acres 

SURROUNDING ZONING: 

North:  General Business (GB) 

South: Residential (R-6) 

East: Residential (R-6) 

West: General Business (GB) 

Two of the three lots fronting E. Elm St. are vacant.  The third lot at the corner of E. Elm and Crawford consists of an 
existing non-conforming, one-story brick-veneer and concrete block commercial building of approximately 1,782 sq. ft.    

The City’s Land Use Plan recommends High-Density Residential development for the property. 



7 
 

The applicant intends to rehabilitate the existing commercial building for business and professional services. 

 City water and sewer are available to serve the property.  The subject property is not located in a Special Flood 
Hazard Area.  Grading and drainage plans may be required.  

Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing and the following person spoke: 

1.  Henry King asked Council to clarify that the property would be rezoned to commercial. Council confirmed 
that the request was for the property to be rezoned from residential to commercial.  

 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

No action necessary. The Planning Commission will have a recommendation at the Council meeting on April 4, 2022. 

Z-3-22 RBV Investments, LLC. – North side of E. US 70 Hwy. between Corbett St. and N. Oak Forest Dr. and 
located in the corporate City limits. Public Hearing Held. The applicant is requesting a change of zone for the subject 
property from Residential Single-Family Conditional Zoning (R-9SFCZ) to Residential Conditional Zoning (R-9CZ) 
limiting the property to a townhome development complex consisting of one-hundred and seven (107) units. 

 According to the City’s UDO, the proposed development shall meet the Multi-Family and Townhome development 
design standards of the R-9 zoning district. 

Frontage:  +400 ft. (Corbett St.)  

Area:  599,385 sq. ft. or 13.7 acres 

SURROUNDING ZONING: 

North:  Office and Institutional (O &I-1) 

South: Residential (R-16/R-12SF), Office and Institutional (O &I-1) 

East: Residential (R-16) 

West: Residential (R-16)/Neighborhood Business (NB) 

On November 4, 2013, the Goldsboro City Council concurred with the recommendation of the Planning Commission 
and adopted an ordinance changing the zoning for the subject property from Residential (R-12SF) to Residential (R-9 
SFCZ) and approved a conceptual plan for a total of 42 single-family lots.  The site was never developed.    

Currently, the property consists of agricultural farmland.   

The City’s Land Use Plan recommends Commercial development.  

The submitted preliminary site plan indicates a total of one-hundred and seven (107) townhome units.   

Access to the site will be directly from the Corbett St. terminus off of McClain St.  The applicant intends to extend 
Corbett St. and construct two new roads built to City standards for formal dedication and acceptance into the City’s street 
network.  

Parking for the site requires two spaces per unit for 1 and 2 BR apartments and three spaces for units over 3 BRs.  
Staff is working with developer to ensure compliance with the City’s parking ordinance.  

A common area equal to twenty percent (20%) of the entire development (excluding rights-of-way) shall be 
preserved, maintained and improved by the development owner for active recreational use by residents of the development.  
The site plan shows open space equal to forty-four percent (44%) of the developed area. 

In addition, the required open space shall be held in common ownership, for the perpetual benefit of residents of the 
development, by a legally established corporation, association or other legal entity, or be dedicated to the City of Goldsboro 
as a public park. 

External City sidewalks are required and are shown for the proposed development utilizing handicap accessible slopes 
and ramps.  Additional sidewalks will be required along interconnecting streets for future development purposes. 

A commercial lighting plan has not been submitted.  Since the subject property is located adjacent to residentially-
zoned and developed properties, the developer will be required to submit a lighting plan in compliance with the City’s 
Commercial Lighting ordinance. 

Interconnectivity has been shown for the site off of Corbett St. and Seymour Village Dr.   

Subject property is located within the City limits of Goldsboro.  As such, City water and sewer are available to serve 
the property.  The property is not located within a special flood hazard area.  City Engineering will require approval of 
storm water calculations and drainage plans prior to issuance of any building permits.           

Street trees have been provided along the proposed townhome street network.  A Type B 15 ft. wide landscape buffer 
is required along all property lines and has been shown for the development.  

All utilities shall be underground. 

At least twenty-four square feet of individual enclosed storage space shall be provided for each dwelling unit.  



8 
 

Commercial dumpsters will be utilized for garbage collection.  Staff will ensure that dumpster corals are properly 
constructed and appropriately screened from off-site views in accordance with City standards.   

Building elevations have not been submitted. Staff will ensure all townhome development design standards are met 
per the requirements of the City’s Unified Development Ordinance prior to issuance of any building permits.      

Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing and the following person spoke: 

1.  Al Strickland stated he has come before Council previously, and expressed concern that the SF designation 
may be removed from the property. He asked that the SF designation not be removed, regardless of how the 
property is developed. It was recommended that he attend the Planning Commission meeting March 28, 2022 
at 7 PM.  

 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

No action necessary. The Planning Commission will have a recommendation at the Council meeting on April 4, 2022. 

Z-4-22 KRP Investments, LLC. – East side of Wayne Memorial Dr. between Fourth St. and Gracie Pl. and 
located in the corporate City limits. Public Hearing Held. The applicant is requesting a change of zone for a portion of 
the subject property (approximately 3 acres) from Office and Institutional (O & I-1) to Residential (R-6CZ) Conditional 
Zoning district limiting the use of the property to a three (3) story multi-family development complex consisting of sixty-
three (63) units for individuals fifty-five (55) years of age and older.  Remaining acreage will be reserved for future 
development. 

 
 According to the City’s UDO, the proposed development shall meet the Multi-Family and Townhome development 

design standards of the R-6 zoning district. 
 
Frontage: +40.8 ft. (Fourth St.)  
Area: 631,620 sq. ft. or 14.5 acres 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING: 

North:  Office and Institutional (O &I-1) 
South: Office and Institutional (O & I-1), Residential (R-9), Neighborhood Business (NB) 
East:  Residential (R-9) 
West: Residential (R-9)/Office and Institutional (O & I-1) 
 

The property currently consists of agricultural farmland and woodlands.   
 
The City’s Land Use Plan recommends Office and Institutional development. Multi-family developments are a 

permitted use in the Office and Institutional (O & I-1) zoning district and must meet the development requirements of the 
closest, most restrictive zoning district.  According to the City’s Land Use Plan, higher residential densities are 
recommended and should be encouraged since City water and sewer are available to serve the property. 

 
The submitted preliminary site plan indicates one, three-story apartment building containing a total of 63 units.   
 
Access to the site will be directly from the E. Fourth Street terminus.  The applicant intends to construct and formally 

dedicate a public road built to City standards approximately 800 ft. eastward to the site and incorporate into the City’s street 
network.  

 
Parking for the site requires two spaces per unit for 1 and 2 BR apartments.  24 of the 63 total units will be 1-bedroom 

units and 39 will be 2-bedroom units.  A total of 126 parking spaces are required and only 71 spaces have been shown on 
the preliminary site plan. Staff is working with developer to meet the City’s commercial parking ordinance.  

 
A common area equal to twenty percent (20%) of the entire development (excluding rights-of-way) shall be 

preserved, maintained and improved by the development owner for active recreational use by residents of the development.  
The required open space shall be held in common ownership, for the perpetual benefit of residents of the development, by a 
legally established corporation, association or other legal entity, or be dedicated to the City of Goldsboro as a public park.  
Staff is working with the developer to ensure compliance with this requirement. 

 
External City sidewalks are required and are not shown for the proposed development.  Staff is working with the 

developer to meet this requirement. 
 
Internal concrete sidewalks are shown providing access to building entrances through sloped ramps and handicap 

accessible walkways. 
 
A commercial lighting plan has not been submitted.  Since the subject property is located adjacent to residentially-

zoned and developed properties, the developer will be required to submit a lighting plan in compliance with the City’s 
Commercial Lighting ordinance. 

 



9 
 

Subject property is located within the City limits of Goldsboro.  As such, City water and sewer are available to serve 
the property.  The property is not located within a special flood hazard area.  City Engineering will require approval of 
storm water calculations and drainage plans prior to issuance of any building permits.           

 
Street trees have been provided along the private access drive leading to the senior living facility.  A Type B 15 ft. 

wide landscape buffer is required along all property lines with the exception of the eastern property line which will require a 
Type A 10 ft. wide buffer yard.  Vehicular surface area landscape requirements must be met.  Staff is working with the 
applicant to ensure landscape requirements are met per the requirements of the City’s Unified Development Ordinance. 

 
Commercial dumpsters will be utilized for garbage collection.  Staff will ensure that dumpster corals are properly 

constructed and appropriately screened from off-site views in accordance with City standards.   
 
Building elevations been submitted. Roofing will consist of architectural shingles.  Wall siding will consist of fiber 

cement cedar shakes, decorative brackets and brick-veneer.  
 
Staff will ensure all multi-family development design standards are met per the requirements of the City’s Unified 

Development Ordinance prior to issuance of any building permits.      
 

Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing and the following person spoke: 

1.  Davis Ray (KRP Investments). A site plan was passed out to Council. Mr. Ray wanted to be available if 
council had any questions. Council had no questions at this time.   

 
No one else spoke and the public hearing period was closed.  
 
No action necessary. The Planning Commission will have a recommendation at the Council meeting on April 4, 2022.  
 
Public Comment Period. Mayor Ham opened the public comment period. The following people spoke:  

1. Willie Baptiste asked about the progress at Goldsboro High School. He made suggestions concerning the 
railroad. Mr. Baptiste also addressed concerns about the lack of response to a recent 911 call.  

2. Alicia Pierce expressed concern about the utility rate increase and asked council to reconsider the increase.  
3. Dr. David Craig expressed concern about the utility rate increase. 
4. Anthony Slater stated that work has begun at Goldsboro High School. He also expressed concern about the 

utility rate increase.  
5. Henry Battle expressed concern that 324 South James Street was sold for $1.  
6. Matthew Roberts asked questions about the utility rate increase.  

 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed.  
 
Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. City Manager Tim Salmon presented the Consent Agenda.  All 

items were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a 
Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered 
separately. In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call vote. 
Councilman Aycock moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items I-O be approved as recommended by the City Manager 
and staff.  The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Polack and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in favor 
of the motion. 

 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:  
 

Location of the 135th USCT Civil War Trail Marker. Approved. On March 27, 1865, a column of African 
American men in new blue uniforms marched down Center Street in front of Gen. William Sherman’s headquarters and 
mustered in as the 135th United States Colored troops. They no longer belonged to enslavers, but belonged as free men to 
the US Army.    

 
The Travel & Tourism Department/Visit Goldsboro would like to relocate the current Civil War Trails signs located 

at the Wayne County Museum to the 200 Block of South Center Street. Project to include:  
 
• One interpretive Civil War Trails Branded Sign 24x36 inches promoting the history of the 135th US Colored 

Infantry Regiment formed in Goldsboro, NC, March 1865 as a part of General William T. Sherman’s Army.  
• One single post “Trailblazer” sign to be located within Goldsboro’s Center Street Streetscape, installed adjacent 

to handicap accessible City sidewalk and behind public benches. 
 
It was recommended that the Council approve the 135th USCT Civil War Trail Marker to be located to the 200 Block 

of South Center Street. Consent Agenda Approval. Aycock/Polack (7 Ayes) 
 



10 
 

Supply Agreement between Sonoco Recycling LLC and the City of Goldsboro (COG). Resolution adopted. 
Sonoco, the Material Recycling Facility (MFR) that currently accepts our recycled materials, would like to enter into a 
“Supply Agreement” to ensure they continue to receive our recyclable goods.    

 
Sonoco has worked with the COG over the last three years as the recycle industry adapted to new demands and 

requirements when the market compressed.  They are the City’s MRF of choice already and the supply agreement would be 
mutually beneficial.  Sonoco would be assured to receive our product, which they need to instill confidence in their 
corporate leaders and businesses that rely on the recycled materials for processing into new products.  More importantly, the 
City would get a $5.00 per ton reduction in the baseline rate used to determine our costs—reducing it from the current rate 
of $122.50 per ton to $117.50 per ton.  Additionally, it guarantees the COG a place to take its recycled goods should the 
market compress. The first customers Sonoco will deny service to will be those who do not have supply agreements.    

  
It was recommended that City Council adopt the following entitled resolution authorizing the City Manager and 

Finance Director to enter into a mutually beneficial supply agreement with Sonoco Recycling LLC. Consent Agenda 
Approval. Aycock/Polack (7 Ayes) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-24 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN THE SUPPLY 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO AND SONOCO RECYCLNG” 
 
Ratifying the Actions Taken Regarding Water Tank Communications Colocation Lease Agreements and 

Approving Amendment to T-Mobile Lease. Resolutions adopted. The City of Goldsboro owns water tanks located at 
904 Harris Street, 100 E. Holly Street, 621 N. Madison Avenue and 512 E. New Hope Road.  The city has entered into 
agreements with US Cellular, T-Mobile and Open Broadband for the installation of cellular and broadband antenna facilities 
on city water tanks. 

 
 Pursuant to NC General Statute 160A-272, staff is requesting that council ratify the actions of the city council at 

their meeting on September 21, 2015 and approve the agreement with US Cellular.   
 
 Also pursuant to NC General Statute 160A-272, staff is requesting that council ratify the actions of the city council 

at their meeting on January 3, 2017 and approve the agreement with T-Mobile (including the 2022 amendment), and the 
agreement with Open Broadband.   

 
The agreements were entered into without the proper notice and resolution requirements being met.  The information 

below describes the lease agreement dates, name of the company the city entered into the agreement with and the lease 
amounts for each lease.   

  
1. T-Mobile original agreement dated January 10, 2017 

a. Location- 671 N. Madison Avenue – Annual lease amount is $26,400.   The annual lease base fee would 
increase by 3% annually for the term of the lease. The initial lease term is five (5) years, and 
automatically renews for four (4) additional five (5) year terms. 

 
2. US Cellular agreement dated September 21, 2015 

a. Location-904 Harris Street -- Annual lease amount $26,400. The annual lease base fee would increase by 
3% annually for the term of the lease. The initial lease term is five (5) years, and automatically renews 
for four (4) additional five (5) year terms. 

 
3. Open Broadband agreement dated December 8, 2020 

a. Locations- 904 Harris Street, 100 E. Holly Street, 621 N. Madison Avenue, 512 E. New Hope Road- The 
annual rental fee is free use of 50 Mbps internet service at each tower location for use as the City sees fit, 
including but not limited to free public Wi-Fi to the community and use by city personnel.  The initial 
license to use term is five (5) years, and automatically renews for one (1) additional five (5) year term. 

 
4. T-Mobile amendment to the January 10, 2017 agreement dated March 2022 

a. Location -- 671 N. Madison Avenue – The additional annual lease amount is $1,800.00.  The annual 
lease base fee would increase under the same terms and conditions as the regular lease payment at 3% 
annually. 

  
It was recommended that Council adopt a resolution ratifying the actions taken by council at the July 6, 2015 meeting, 

and approving the agreement with US Cellular.  It was also recommended that Council adopt the following entitled 
resolution ratifying the actions taken by council at the January 3, 2017 meeting, and approving the original and amendment 
to the agreement with T-Mobile.  It was further recommended that the Council adopt the following entitled resolution 
ratifying the actions of city staff and approving the agreement with Open Broadband. The original agreements are attached. 
Consent Agenda Approval. Aycock/Polack (7 Ayes) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-25 “RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE ACTIONS OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 

AND APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH US CELLULAR” 
 



11 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-26 “RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE ACTIONS OF CITY STAFF AND APPROVING AN 
AGREEMENT WITH T-MOBILE AND OPEN BROADBAND” 

 
Advisory Board and Commission Appointments. Resolutions adopted. There are currently several vacancies on 

Advisory Boards and Commissions.  Citizen involvement is vital to the performance of City government.  It is necessary 
that additional appointments be made in an effort to fill these vacancies.   

 
Recommendations for appointments were requested from the respective Boards and Commissions.  Applications were 

also solicited from the public at large.  
 
The City Council met during the Work Session on March 7, 2022, to review vacancies and applications received to 

fill the current vacancies. With these appointments, no vacancies remain.  
 
It is also customary for the City of Goldsboro to express its appreciation by Resolution to those members whose terms 

have expired, who have moved, or have resigned.  
 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Resolutions, appointing members to various Advisory 

Boards and Commissions in the City of Goldsboro, and commending those individuals whose terms have expired, who have 
moved, or have resigned. Consent Agenda Approval. Aycock/Polack (7 Ayes) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-27 “RESOLUTION APPOINTING MEMBERS TO ADVISORY BOARDS AND 

COMMISSIONS” 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-28 “RESOLUTION COMMENDING INDIVIDUALS WHO HAVE SERVED ON VARIOUS 

ADVISORY BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR ON 
BEHALF OF THE CITY COUNCIL TO PRESENT THE INDIVIDUALS WITH A CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION” 

 
Adoption of a Supplement to the Code of Ordinances of Goldsboro, North Carolina. Ordinance adopted. In 

1990, an agreement was reached between the North Carolina League of Municipalities and the City of Goldsboro to engage 
American Legal Publishing Company to revise the Code of Ordinances of Goldsboro.  The revised Code was published in 
1995.  

 
The agreement stated that American Legal Publishing Company would prepare supplements for incorporation of new 

Ordinances to the City Code of Ordinances on a recurring basis.  In compliance with this agreement, the City has received 
the S-46 Supplement.  This Supplement contains all Ordinances of a general nature enacted since the S-45 Code of 
Ordinances dated June 7, 2021. 

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Ordinance enacting and adopting the 2022 S-46 

Supplement to the Code of Ordinances of the City of Goldsboro. Consent Agenda Approval. Aycock/Polack (7 Ayes) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-8 “AN ORDINANCE ENACTING AND ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENT TO THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 
 
Departmental Monthly Reports – January and February. Accepted as Information.  The various departmental 

reports for January 2022 and February 2022 were submitted for Council approval. It was recommended that Council accept 
the reports as information. Consent Agenda Approval. Aycock/Polack (7 Ayes)  

 
End of Consent Agenda. 
 
Items Requiring Individual Action.  
Consider a Proposal to Provide Economic Incentives to the Mount Olive Pickle Company. Resolution Adopted. 

The Mount Olive Pickle Company has been in business in Mount Olive since 1926. Pursuant to NC General Statue 158-7.1, 
a public hearing was held on March 7, 2022 to review a proposal for the City of Goldsboro to provide economic incentives 
to the Mount Olive Pickle Company, Inc. totaling $600,000 over a ten-year period based on a performance agreement with a 
$45,450,000 investment and the creation of 167 full-time jobs in Goldsboro.   

 
Mount Olive Pickle Company, Inc. will incur costs in purchasing facilities and adding machinery and equipment to 

such facilities, and the County and City will realize economic benefits due to the expansion of the ad valorem tax base (an 
estimated $2,100,000 for the City over the first ten-years) and the creation of employment opportunities for the citizens 
thereof.    

 
Mount Olive Pickle Company, Inc.'s expansion in Goldsboro depends in part on the support of the NC Department of 

Commerce $22 million grant for utility infrastructure, the County, and City in terms of incentives, including, but not limited 
to, adequate water and wastewater infrastructure and financial grants. 

 
A grant by the County and the City to the Mount Olive Pickle Company, Inc. in the amount of One Million Two 

Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,200,000) would be an incentive for such investment by the Mount Olive Pickle Company, 



12 
 

Inc. to assist the same pay a portion of the costs of the investment, and that such incentives be designated as an “Economic 
Development Grant”.  

 
Staff recommends Council adopt the following Resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute a 

performance agreement with the Mount Olive Pickle Company, Inc.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion to approve the Resolution, the motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor, 

and unanimously carried. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-29 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO EXECUTE A 

PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT WITH MOUNT OLIVE PICKLE COMPANY, INC.” 
 
City Manager’s Report. Tim Salmon shared that the fountain was dyed green for St. Patrick’s Day. The fountain 

was dyed blue, and the lights tinted yellow on March 21, 2022 in honor of Ukraine.  
 
Ceremonial Documents. 
Resolution Expressing Appreciation For Services Rendered By Linwood (Worth) Smith As An Employee Of 

The City Of Goldsboro For More Than 19 Years. Resolution Adopted. Linwood (Worth) Smith retires on April 1, 2022 
as a Park Technician with the Parks and Recreation Department of the City of Goldsboro with more than 19 years of 
service. Worth began his career on February 12, 2003 as a Laborer II with the Golf Course Division of the Parks and 
Recreation Department. On August 1, 2007, Worth was promoted to Senior Maintenance Worker with the Parks and 
Recreation Department. On November 16, 2011, Worth’s position was reclassified as Park Technician with the Parks and 
Recreation Department where he has served until his retirement. Worth has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient 
public servant who has gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro. 
The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of themselves, City employees and the 
citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Linwood (Worth) Smith their deep appreciation and gratitude for the 
service rendered by him to the City over the years, and express to Worth our very best wishes for success, happiness, 
prosperity, and good health in his future endeavors.  This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the 
City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full force and effect from and after this 21st day of March, 2022. 

 
Upon motion by Councilman Broadaway, seconded by Councilwoman Jones, and unanimously carried, Council 

adopted the following entitled Resolution. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-30 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY 

LINWOOD (WORTH) SMITH AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 19 YEARS”  
 
Resolution Expressing Appreciation For Services Rendered By Dwight Tyndall As An Employee Of The City 

Of Goldsboro For More Than 7 Years. Resolution Adopted. Dwight Tyndall retires on April 1, 2022 as a Plant 
Maintenance/Mechanic Operator with the Public Utilities Department of the City of Goldsboro with more than 7 years of 
service. Dwight began his career on February 4, 2015 as an Operator I with the Public Utilities Department. On May 23, 
2018, Dwight was transferred to Compost Plant Operator with the Public Utilities Department. On June 19, 2019, Dwight 
was promoted to Plant Maintenance/Mechanic Operator with the Public Utilities Department where he has served until his 
retirement. Dwight has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained the admiration and 
respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro. The Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of themselves, City employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to 
Dwight Tyndall their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years, and express 
to Dwight our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity, and good health in his future endeavors. This Resolution 
shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full force and effect from and after 
this 21st day of March, 2022. 

 
Upon motion by Mayor Pro Tem Polack, seconded by Councilman Gaylor, and unanimously carried, Council adopted 

the following entitled Resolution. 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-31 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY 

DWIGHT TYNDALL AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 7 YEARS” 
 
Child Abuse Prevention Month Proclamation. Read by Councilman Gaylor, Mayor David Ham proclaimed April 

2022, as CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION MONTH in Goldsboro, North Carolina and called upon all citizens, community 
agencies, faith groups, medical facilities, elected leaders and businesses to increase their participation in our efforts to 
support families, thereby preventing child abuse and strengthening the communities in which we live.  

 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Comments. 
Councilman Aycock apologized for missing the last meeting due to health issues.  
 
Councilman Gaylor acknowledged the difficult decision made to raise the utility rates, and shared hope that such a 

decision would not be needed again in the near future.  
 
Councilwoman Matthews had no comment.  



o
s~ 

a
n

o

0
0

b
n

a
cqj ..

d
O

o
p
. 

a 
o

U
0

C
d

N
N

N

Oc
z

N
C

1' 

C
U

to
px

C's— N
c>

;?
 

a
d
o

C;3
bo

cC -
C4

y
s

O
O

c
U

cn
N

b
v

r
A

r
y

w
r

O
c
z

U
Q

) 
o

O
O

p
N

U
N

N
0

d
N

 . 
b

U
O

 -
C

V
] 

c
l

O
D

Q) 
a
4cno o. 

U
cqs

O
oc
. 

c 
N

N

to

O
a

1
° . 

O
U

y
V

0
3

0
4

o

C
C

0
 
 

C
IS

o

p0
O

M

H
o

u

O
c-;3

0

O
O

c
d

N
V

ci . 
b

0

r

U

W
!
.
 

Mr
 
- I



mai Zach Lilly <zach@eastpointegroup. com> 

Re: Sewage Backup
14 messages

Rick Fletcher < RFletcher@goldsboronc. gov> Thu, Mar 30, 2017 at 5: 06 PM

To: Zach Lilly < zach@eastpointegroup. com> 
Cc: Donald McMullen < DMcMullen@goldsboronc. gov> 

Mr. Lilly, 

There is no sewage line running down Walnut St that you could tap/tie into for your service. Even if there were, you
would be responsible for the cost to run the line from your house to the street. 

After looking into your situation/ concern and visiting the area in question, I' ve come to the same conclusion as my
predecessor. The line in question is a private line and not maintained by the City. 

All property owners are responsible for installing and maintaining the sewage lines running from their respective homes to
the City' s main line ( tap) in the street. 

I know this is probably not what you wanted to hear, but it is the guidance we are obligated to follow. 

Respectfully, 
Rick

Sent from my iPhone

On Mar 24, 2017, at 6: 18 PM, Zach Lilly < zach@eastpointegroup. com> wrote: 

Rick, 

I have had issues with my sewagr backing up in the past and the city refused to make any repairs stating
the line is a " private main". 

My address is 309 W Walnut St. I live in the heart of the historic district and am thoroughly confused! It
seems as if a main run behind the houses to the public main on Virginia street. Is there not a main on
Walnut between George and Virginia? What in the world is a " private main"? 

My solution to the problem is to cap off the main from all of the properties up the hill as I am not
accomodating that appartment building. There is no easment nor permit on record. That being said, the
main would fall into the category of encroachment. 

I really hate to do this and would love to see the city take ownership of this line in the historic district. 

Zach

919- 288- 0688

GOLDSB O R-0
BE MORE DO MORE SEYMOUR

Pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes Chapter 132, Public Records, this electronic mail message and any
attachments hereto, as well as any electronic mail message( s) that may be sent in response to it may be considered
public record and as such are subject to request and review by anyone at any time. 

Zach Lilly <zach@eastpointegroup. com> Thu, Mar 30, 2017 at 7: 57 PM



To: Rick Fletcher < RFletcher@goldsboronc. gov> 

Rick, 

Can I set up a time to meet with you? It is a very unique situation. There are no easements or permits on record for the
line. The line services 4 properties ( that I know of). 

v/ r

Zachary E. Lilly, Realtor
East Pointe Group
C: 919- 288- 0688

Working With Real Estate Agents Brochure
Quoted text hidden] 

Rick Fletcher < RFletcher@goldsboronc. gov> Fri, Mar 31, 2017 at 11: 36 AM

To: Zach Lilly < zach@eastpointegroup. com> 

Mr. Lilly, 

We can get together and discuss next week— let me know when you are available. 

Thanks, 

Rick

Richard E. A. Fletcher III

Public Works Director

City of Goldsboro

Office: 919- 739- 7413 Cell: 919- 333- 0554

F 919- 739- 7442

www. goldsborone. gov

LDSBR-0
BE MORE DO MORE SEYMOUR

Quoted text hidden] 

Zach Lilly < zach@eastpointegroup. com> Fri, Mar 31, 2017 at 11: 47 AM

To: Rick Fletcher < RFletcher@goldsboronc. gov> 

Rick, 



My schedule next week is super flexible. Just let me know what works for you. 
Quoted text hidden] 

Rick Fletcher < RFletcher@goldsboronc. gov> Mon, Apr 3, 2017 at 7: 12 AM

To: Zach Lilly < zach@eastpointegroup. com> 
Cc: Donald McMullen < DMcMullen@goldsboronc. gov> 

Mr. Lilly, 

Unfortunately, my schedule isn' t so flexible. The earliest I can meet is Thursday around 10: 00 A. M. Do you want to
meet at your property? 

Quoted text hidden] 

Rick Fletcher < RFletcher@goldsboronc. gov> Wed, Apr 12, 2017 at 9: 01 AM

To: Zach Lilly < zach@eastpointegroup. com> 
Cc: Donald McMullen < DMcMullen@goldsboronc. gov> 

Zach, 

I called and left a message. We need permission to go on your property and access the sewer line in order to trace it out. 
Are you OK with us going on your property? 

Thanks, 

Rick

Sent from my iPhone

On Apr 3, 2017, at 7: 12 AM, Rick Fletcher < RFletcher@goldsboronc. gov> wrote: 

Mr. Lilly, 

Unfortunately, my schedule isn' t so flexible. The earliest I can meet is Thursday around 10: 00 A. M. Do
you want to meet at your property? 

Thanks, 

Rick

Richard E. A. Fletcher III

Public Works Director

City of Goldsboro

Office: 919- 739- 7413 Cell: 919- 333- 0554

F 919- 739- 7442

www. goldsboronc. gov



image001. jpg> 

From: Zach Lilly [ mailto:zach@eastpointegroup. com] 
Sent: Friday, March 31, 2017 11: 47 AM
To: Rick Fletcher < RFletcher@goldsboronc. gov> 

Subject: RE: Sewage Backup

Rick, 

My schedule next week is super flexible. Just let me know what works for you. 

On Mar 31, 2017 11: 36 AM, ' Rick Fletcher" < RFletcher@goldsboronc. gov> wrote: 

Mr. Lilly, 

We can get together and discuss next week— let me know when you are available. 

Thanks, 

Rick

Richard E. A. Fletcher III

Public Works Director

City of Goldsboro

Office: 919- 739- 7413 Cell: 919- 333- 0554

F 919- 739- 7442

www. goldsboronc. gov

image001 Jpg> 

Quoted text hidden] 

LV S q ! 0̀ image001. jpg
BE MORE 00 MORE SEYMOUR 4K

Zach Lilly <zach@eastpointegroup. com> Wed, Apr 12, 2017 at 10: 44 AM



To: Rick Fletcher < RFletcher@goldsboronc. gov> 

Sorry Rick. I' m out of town with limited phone access. You have muy permission to do whatever you need to do. 
Quoted text hidden] 

Rick Fletcher < RFletcher@goldsboronc. gov> Wed, Apr 12, 2017 at 2: 26 PM

To: Zach Lilly < zach@eastpointegroup. com> 
Cc: Donald McMullen < DMcMullen@goldsboronc. gov> 

Zach, 

We' ve installed the sweeps and cleanouts at the street and sent a camera through your sewage line. The problem is

in your neighbor' s yard, about 25 feet from your fence. At least that' s where the camera wouldn' t go any further. 

We can' t continue repairs until you get easements for the surrounding properties. We' ll need access for the
equipment and will be digging along the property line. 

Let us know when the easements are approved and we' ll schedule the repairs. 

Thanks, 

Rick

Richard E. A. Fletcher III

Public Works Director

City of Goldsboro

Office: 919- 739- 7413 Cell: 919- 333- 0554

F 919- 739- 7442

www. goldsborone. gov

GLDSBR-0
BE MORE CO MORE SEYMOUR

Quoted text hidden] 

Zach Lilly <zach@eastpointegroup. com> 
To: aangelo@goldsboronclawyers. com

Anne, 

Wed, Apr 12, 2017 at 2: 36 PM

I' m out of town but could you pass this on to Jim and see what we need to do to get the easments. 
Quoted text hidden] 



Zach Lilly < zach@eastpointegroup. com> Wed, Apr 12, 2017 at 2: 38 PM

To: Rick Fletcher < RFletcher@goldsboronc. gov> 

Rick, 

Thank you so much. I forwarded your email to Mr. Womble' s office so he can get the easements recorded. 

Quoted text hidden] 

Anne Angelo <aangelo@goldsboronclawyers. com> 

To: Zach Lilly < zach@eastpointegroup. com> 

Will do. 

Thanks, 

Anne

Anne M. Angelo, Legal Assistant

EVERETT, WOMBLE & LAWRENCE, LLP

Phone: 919- 778- 6707

Fax: 919- 751- 2598

aangelo@goldsboronclawyers. com

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Wed, Apr 12, 2017 at 2: 38 PM



Quoted text hidden] 

Anne Angelo < aangelo@goldsboronclawyers. com> 

To: Zach Lilly < zach@eastpointegroup. com> 
Wed, Apr 12, 2017 at 3: 40 PM

I referred your e- mail to Mr. Womble. He said to please call him when you get back in town. 

Thanks, 

Anne

Anne M. Angelo, Legal Assistant

EVERETT, WOMBLE & LAWRENCE, LLP

Phone: 919- 778- 6707

Fax: 919- 751- 2598

aangelo@goldsboronclawyers. com

From: Zach Lilly [ mailto: zach@eastpointegroup. com] 
Sent: Wednesday, April 12, 2017 2: 37 PM
To: aangelo@goldsboronclawyers. com

Subject: Fwd: RE: Sewage Backup

Anne, 

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 



Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Quoted text hidden] 

Zach Lilly < zach@eastpointegroup. com> Wed, Jan 12, 2022 at 4: 38 PM

To: Billy Strickland < billy@stricklandlawnc. com> 

Mr. Strickland, 

I spoke to Mr. Fletcher a few minutes ago via phone. He stated that the line

is not owned by the City and that it is a private line. In the emails below, he

stated that the City would repair the line if an easement was recorded. The

easement was recorded and the line never repaired. His argument is that he

and Mr. Womble were both mistaken at that time. 

I know you have a lot going on. Just get back to me when you can. 

Sincerely, 

Zachary E. Lilly, Realtor

East Pointe Group

C: 919-288-0688

Web: www.ZachLilly.com

f

Working With Real Estate Agents Brochure



Forwarded message --------- 

From: Rick Fletcher < RFletcher@goldsboronc. gov> 
Date: Wed, Apr 12, 2017 at 2: 26 PM

Subject: RE: Sewage Backup
To: Zach Lilly < zach@eastpointegroup. com> 
Cc: Donald McMullen < DMcMullen@goldsboronc. gov> 

Quoted text hidden) 

Zach Lilly <zach@eastpointegroup. com> Fri, Jan 14, 2022 at 12: 27 PM
To: David Ham < damwham@msn. com> 

Mayor Ham, 

Please see email traffic below. I have also attached the easement for your

convenience. 

The reason this issue is coming up again ( 5 years later) is at the time this
was going on, I was pegged for a 2 month TDY to Utah for weapons testing. 
Upon my return, I sold the house with owner financing terms ( Contract for
Deed). I was just able to regain possession of the property this past fall. 
While having repairs done to the property, it was brought to my attention
that there was still an issue with sewage backing up in the yard and the
house. I had my plumber go out and snake the line. He informed me that

the pipe had failed on my neighbors property. 

I sincerely appreciate you taking time to look into this issue. Don' t hesitate

to reach out if there is anything you need from my end. 

Sincerely, 

Zachary E. Lilly, Realtor

East Pointe Group
C: 919- 288- 0688

Web: www.ZachLilly. com

s

Working With Real Estate Agents Brochure



Forwarded message ------ 

From: Rick Fletcher < RFletcher@goldsboronc. gov> 

Date: Wed, Apr 12, 2017 at 2: 26 PM

Subject: RE: Sewage Backup
To: Zach Lilly < zach@eastpointegroup. com> 
Cc: Donald McMullen < DMcMullen@goldsboronc. gov> 

Quoted text hidden] 

In
easement. pdf

344K



Page 1 of 3 r

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII IIIIIIIIIIIIIIII0111111 1111111111 11111111i111111111 1\ 
i Doc ID: 011724350003 Type: CRP

Recorded: 02/ 05/ 2018 at 02: 07: 06 PM
Fee Amt: $ 26. 00 Page i of 3
WAYNE COUNTY, NC
JUDY HARRISON REGISTER OF DEEDS

BK 3351 PG636- 638

NORTH CAROLINA

A/ AYNECOUNTY

0016K 3 3 5 1 FATE 6 3 6

Indexed

DEED OF -EASEMENT

THIS -DEED OF EASEMENT made this the .26th day of April, 2017, by and between ZACHARY

EDWARD LiLLY, whose address is 211 W. Ash" Street,,,Goldsboro, NC 27530, party of the first part, and

the CITY OF,GO•LDSBO"RO, a m̀unicipal corporation, whose address is P. O. Drawer A, -Goldsboro, NC

2T533, party of the -second part; 

WITNESS.. ETH

That for and in consideration of the sum of $1. 00 and other good and valuable considerations paid

by the party of the second part to the party of the first part, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, 

the party of the first part has bargained and sold, and by these presents. does bargain, sell and convey

unto the party of the' second part, and its successors and assigns, that certain permanent sanitary sewer

and utility easement for the purpose of constructing, operating and maintaining a permanent sanitary

sewer line and other utilities under and across. the lands of the party of the first part, together with right

of ingress. and egress thereto aid therefrom for the -purpose of such =construction; operation and

maintenance. Said easement is described as follows: 

Being that=easement.as described and shown across the property -of Zachary Edward Lilly
at 309 W. Walnut Street, Goldsboro, NC, the -same being shown on a map attached hereto
And made a parthereof. 

PREPARED EY.• JAMES D. WOMBLE JR. 
11 1V"'• % Everett, Womble & Lawrence, LLP, Attorneys at Law

Post Office Drawer 1678, Goldsboro, NC 2 7533

r,:\ANNE\ aa\ cog\ Eas.ements\ lilly lzachary to city sanitary sewer easement. wpd

Book: 3351 Page: 636 Seq: 1



Page 2 of 3

BOR 3 3 5 1 PAGE 6 31

It is frirther understood and agreed ' in.connection with the granting and purchasing of this

easement and right- of-way: 

1 What the.,easement and right- of-way herein.,conveyed confers upon the party of the second part

and its contractorthe'right to remove any building, fence, appliances, etc., that may obstruct construction

Within said -sanitary sewer and utility easement. 

2. That the party of the second part shall .also have the right to remove and keep clear such

bushes and trees and pull up such stumps from the easement -and right=o# way herein granted as may

be reasonably necessaryto construct, operate, and -maintain said permanent sanitary sewer and utilities

within the easement; .but will remove from the premises of the party of the first part any trees or bushes

so -removed and any.,such stumps pulled up. 

3. That the party of the second part shall cause to be replaced all dirt in as reasonably good

condition as the same existed before saidksanitary, sewerand utility. easementwas conveyed. 

4. That the -party of the first part shall continue .to have the use and enjoyment of the premises

herein conveyed so long as such use and enjoyment does not materially. interfere with the construction, 

operation and maintenance of said permanent sanitary sewer and utilities within the easement. 

WITNESS the -signature and seal of the. party of the first part; this the day and year first above

written. 

Zell", 
V4 ( SEAL) 

CHAR EDWARD LILLY

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF WAYNE

a Notary Public -in and for the aforesaid State and
County, do hereby certify that ZACHARY EDWARD. LILLY personally appeared before me this day, [V
personally known to me - OR- [ ] proved to me by sa\ isij?iory evidence, and .acknowledged to me that

he signed it voluntarily for its stated purpose. \` N, Wo

ITN SS my ha n notarial seal, this day 201? 

PU B I C' My Commission Expires: 
3 ' a2 , Notary Public

Printed Wme of Notary COC) 
UN'

N\ f

1,I1111 

G:\ ANNE\ aa\ cog\ Ea-sements\ lilly eac'hary• to .city sanitary sewer easement. wpd 2

Book: 3351 Page: 636 Seq: 2



C 

S HOUSE 305

Wq
Ur 3T RFeT

Sp .. 

Book: 3351 Page: 636 Seq: 3

W E

HOUSE 104

sa

z - aa

1 DPo

ss `
mak\.

110'—PROP. EASEMENT

20' 

l \ err

CO HOUSE ml

15'— P OP." 

EASE ENT 5' 

co

Q HOUSE 307

C 

S HOUSE 305

Wq
Ur 3T RFeT

Sp .. 

Book: 3351 Page: 636 Seq: 3





4





ON A MISSION TO PROVIDE CREATIVE OUTLETS TO IMPROVE 
RESIL IENCY AND ENRICH THE MILITARY L IFECYCLE

STUDIO LOCATED:
CONNECT 4 ,  1515  GOODSON STREET,  SEYMOUR JOHNSON AFB NC

PHONE:  919  750  9878

www.homefront roomrev i va l .o rg kate@homefront roomrev i va l .o rg

@HOMEFRONTROOMREVIVAL





THE STUDIO CREATIVE CHAOS 
SERIES

CURB ALERT DEC' THE 
DEPLOYMENT• COMMUNITY BRIDGE

• SOFT ENTRY POINT INTO 
TRADITIONAL RESOURCES

• APPROACHABLE SAFE 
SPACE ON BASE TO 
RETREAT TO, IN PERSON

• PROGRAMS EMPLOY 
SPOUSES/VETERANS

• LIFESKILL MENTORS ARE 
AVAILABLE & CREATIVE 
COPING SKILLS ARE TAUGHT

• LEARN TO AFFORDABLY 
FURNISH EMPTY HOUSES 
INTO HOMES

• UPCYCLING WORKSHOPS 
USING TEAMBUILDING 
AND NETWORKING

• OPENS UP 
CONVERSATIONS FOR 
PERSONALIZED SUPPORT

• IN HOME OUTREACH 
AVAILABLE TO AT RISK 
FAMILIES/AIRMAN

• INCLUSIVE COMMUNITY 
OF CONNECTIONS

• LIFESKILLS ARE TAUGHT 
BY VETERANS/SPOUSES 
TO VETERANS/SPOUSES

• FREE CHILDCARE IS 
AVAILABLE

• CONTINUOUS GROUP 
SERIES FACILITATING  
FRIENDSHIPS & SUPPORT

• HOLIDAY PROGRAMS 
BRINGING COMMUNITY 
TOGETHER TO SUPPORT 
THOSE IN NEED

• IN HOME HOLIDAY 
DECORATING AND 
PERSONAL CONNECTIONS 
DELIVERED TO AT RISK 
FAMILIES/AIRMAN











Employed military 
spouses on 
contracts

The number statement of 
our achievements and journey over 12 
months

Creative Chaos series group 
events held featuring speed 
friending, life skills and 
food pairings were booked 

People self-identified for additional 
personal HRR programs requesting 
in home outreach 

Repeat clients cycling 
through programs

unique individuals attended 
programs

New "Curb Alert" group events 
launched teaching how to furnish a 
home on a budget over Nacho Chips & 
Furniture Flips

Items created or upcycled in the 
studio for Airman/families



Item C





D





m
O

 -a

L

O

a
c

N

J
b

O
c

Z
O

4 
C

C
u

C
L

H

YL
U

a
r
l

3

t
N

Q
V

) 
0

a
a

0
L

Oz
Q

4f

a
Vi

O
O
C

L
a
-
 

O
a

0
2

O
L

L
O

m
L

OU

O

L
U

f0

O
O

CL
m

E
O

L

N
m

E
3

U
E

u
NN

L
Z

z

O
n

L
n

o
3

Q
m

c

0
u

a
 
' 

o

w
Q

3
0

s

t
i4

U
^
 

CLO
H

L
 
`
^
 

o
v

a
'

N
 

U
L

n
Z

c
 
' 

O
m

4
- 

a
c

w
J

L
 +

-
 

C
Z

t

w

UZ
0c

m
U

n
j

o
O

N
N

O
N

O

w
QZ

Qu
L

O
a

0
c +, 

N
4

- -
0

Q
. 

E
s

a
in

d
2

r
l

o
f

p

U
C

a-
0

O
O

N
0

0
W

c
Q

t
 

O
a

0
u
-
0

O
U

H
O

m
a

c
L

c
L

O

N
Z

CL
C

w

Z
eL6

a
4- 

ILO

m
aE

O
Q

0
Z

a, 

a
O

N
u

u
O

cn

Z
Ow

86
0

a

O
A

a
j

ZQ
Z

C

J

c
c

4- 
a

O
U

0
0

U
N

c

J
• 

iF
m

L
U

0
F, 

c
OU

V
' .

c
O

O
0

Q
 

a
O

c
u

Q
a

c

i- 
O

m
L

CO
m

a
4

. 
L

O
O

H
w

a

b
-0

40
0

v
N

w
 -
t

Q
C

7

Z
D

U
Z

c

m
+

 

fO
a

On
O

C
0
 —

 

3
a

U
OC

CL
a

oa
oc

m
0

q
p

C
L
u

O

O
m2

O
3

 

O
c

o
3

Z
Z

2
5

OE
0

O
O

a
c
t

a
aLL

a
O

w
'

E= 
am

i
C

mw
N

w
u

O
VC

o
U

0
 ' 

0
O

A
a
) 

O
V

o
U

a
t

Z
y

L
tw

 : 
i •

c
 

L
L

a

LLLU

Q
ca

a
 
.
=

 
' 
,

n
O

a
4  

Z
_
 

c
04* 1

3
c

0

2
0

m
c

w
N

a
m

m
o

m
N

c
c

Q
a
=

 
a

Q
 •

N
c

E
N

Ln

w
a

L
 "O

D
w

U
m

0

ZQ

p

o
C
t

c

w
 
+

 
m

a
c

a
O

 - 
w

E
t

m

Z
r
l

li
N

W
2

C
 • 

O
co

S
U

m
N

 •
L

Q
O

a

a
y

3

CCO
a

C
U

U
U

U

m

mL

O

CL) 

E

J
b

O
c

4 
C

C

a
t

YL
U

0

Oz
0
 
 

4f

a
I.- 

U
O

0
0

O
0

f0
O

U

E
3

L
aY
;. 

z
O

 
O

a
O

c
u

c
o

O
O

N

U
C

of
cB

m

a
y

y
M

O
O

N
M

2
' 

O
U

 
c

a
p

V
t

v
O

a
O0

O
CL

z
U

CL
C

N
t

fC

av
C

L
L- 

wL
0

a

W
a, 

o
o
v

Na
Q

E
a

E
t

a
c

C

a
i
t

aJ
3Z

Q

0
0

a
n

J
• 

iF
m

F, 
c

V
' .

c
O

i- 

m
3

C
Z

0
ra

a
a

Q
m

Zo
a

c
OQ

t
-
 N

O
c

c
a

OC
CL

a
oa

oc
m

c
3

a

O
m2

O
a

L

N
M

c
L

mw
N

w
u

a

p
 

v
0N

U
y

0
L

r
 
+

O
+ 

c
LLLU

L
ca

U
m

O
c

0

C
m

c
Q

U
m

0
a

2
H

Z
=

 
L
 
(

n

C
L

o
E

N
Ln

m

0
p

a
0

a
a

Z
r
l

li
N

W
N

v

m
Q

. 

m

Qmc0NU
_
 

OgmatcOa0mcQjLatHCaECCa Cm



G









c
o

 -
a

a
c

c
f0M

Z
O

J
N

t
C

C
L

Q
J

q
j

V
, 

L
Y

a1
r
-

I
7

L
N

C
p

a
a

0
L

L

O
c

V
X

N
v
i

a1
CU

a
) 

E
0

0
4

- 

a) L
C

L
O

s

H

N
E 

O
a

M
Y

c
 

O

0
-,

2

ac1
m

O

V
U

N

H
 '

O

O
p

mW
0) 

o
o °' 

3

D

m
c

O
U

O
a
) 

m
 '= 

O

a

7U
N

O
A

LN ' j
N

-
0

Z
c
 
.

0
O

a
U

c
J

L
 
+

 
C

Z
m
t
'
 

Y
QLl

O
m

N
p

o
f

Q
t

w
o

a
o

a
E
t
t

Y
cu

N
Q) 

k
n

C

z
c

r
.j

N

N
a

 "
O

UL1 -
a

O
O

v
0
0

a
J

Z
O

m
p

c
L

o
c

Z
m

N
o

m
 -

0
 ,

N
a

o: 
p

M
C

m
m

0O
O

a
u

CU
a

) 
m

cu
Cpl

O
W

L
n

m
C

d
O
c

C
m

L
 
`
 

C
a

O

A

Y

O
m

4
-
-
 

V

V

a
0

0CO L
7

c
 'O

O
s
 
+

-
 
`
^
 c

0
 (D

O
 ` 

v
G

O
c

O
  

a
O

W
L.L

o
M

v
O

c
C

m
m

C
L

Y
t

o
Wp

O
O

C
m

o
A

 ,- 
C

a
) 

m
w

-
'
 

4
- 

3
c

U
C

LO
q

O
C

-
 

C
0

a
, 

O
 •

U
OD

2
o

Ln
CO

3
o

a

E
=

 
a

E
O

v
U

v>
 

L
L

O
V

N
a

a
J

O

o
Y

Y
O

E
u

Lno

m

U
U

O
O

a
) 

p
0

U
OL

c

CL
MO

U
 •

c
v
t

v
L
 
.

0
Y

3
 ` 

C. ( 
Ch

L
N

v

O
m

C
H

L^
a
 =

 
a

m
p

m
N

w
c

w
U

m

3

t
4-1

c
W

 +
' 

m
 -

O
o
C

a
J

a
w

E
t

m

c
H

m

U

p
a) 

Z
a

c
c

m
N

 '
i

O
_ 

W
O

aJ

4A

4! +
O+ 

mC
c

N
of

E
C

Nate+ 
O

O

O
W

p
U

U
u

D
m

a
"' 

m
a
r

c
c

f0M
tw

OL
pa

a
 

v
p

tibo
mU

L

O
c

V
X

4
- 

c

0
m

V
f
s

ia
J

H
ac1

m
O

L0
0
a

V
H

 '
O

O
p

mW
0) 

C
U

a
) 

mo
o

D

L
O

N
C

O

0U
C

O

C
c

m
O

N
m

0 •p
Y

cu

N
Q) 

O
4

1
C

N
aJ

O
aJ

m
p

v
- 
O

a
m

L
>

 

N
p

 +
' 

l7Y
4

-
 

O
O

y
L

C

Y
 
•
 

O
a

) 

p
O -

Op
p

a
! 

U
O

yU

uc
U

- 
O

m

O
a
) 

m
m

a
) 

c '
L^ 

v
t

o

U
y

0Jm •- 
0
0

0
0

V
t

OL *' 

O
O

m
t1

4
 >

 
m

0
0

U
OL

c

Y
3
 ` 

C. ( 
Ch

L
N

v
s
 
'
a

O
L

OL
L

m
3

E
P

. 
w

c
H

m
L

n
M

p
a) 

Z
a

c
c

OU
C

L

O
4A

4! +
O+ 

O
a
) 

ate+ 
O

O
a

3

GJ .- 
N

N
L

m
L

Y
w

OC
U

v
W

t
p

a
0

y
0

: 
3

Lon
a

J

Y
v

O
C

0
L

CL

O
O

3
a

L

a
m

l"
I "+ 

l"
I

C
7

c
O

a
Y

w
O

O
. >

 
a) 

WZ
0
O

o
 

O
H

r
 
+

=
 

V
aJ

O
Q

m
o

t
'
 

3
00C::

t
a, 

Ocr- 
O

m
CL
M

i
U

0
C00

a
i

c
7

a
) 

O
C

n
U

o
 : 

O
. 

m
a

N
E

c
c

H
I]A

U
w

v
i

x
W

l

m

m

c
.
 a3_+ aJ

i
a

s
s

C
  

a
r

v
i

L
Y

w
N

O
O

M

L
L

L
L

J

a
aCLu

m
O

aJ
O

U
4

! 
m

e
u

zp
r

c
3

4
'
 

5. 
v
n

C
1

C
L

N
O

L
m

a
 
•
 

O
4

' #
A

N
Q, 

m
  

O
O

C
L

a
J

p
a1

aJ6
Z

i --I
L
L

V
N

V
) 

U
H

N
U

 +
••+

 

D
m

a

m

OmmEm2c
:
 



H

Removed from Agenda







RESOLUTION NO. 2022 – 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 
OF A CONTRACT EXTENSION FOR THE GOLDSBORO-WAYNE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

(GWTA) MARKETING AND PUBLIC RELATIONS SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro, acting as the Lead Planning Agency for the Goldsboro 
MPO, found it in the public interest to expand the public outreach and marketing strategy for 
Goldsboro-Wayne Transportation Authority in 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the Goldsboro MPO Transportation Advisory Committee approved Quest 
Corporation of America, Inc., for marketing and public relations services on June 13, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council deemed it in the best interest of the City of Goldsboro to 
award the contract to Quest Corporation of American, Inc., for the Goldsboro-Wayne 
Transportation Marketing and Public Relations services on July 15, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the contract period was for three years, July 2019 through June 2022, and 
allowing an option to extend for up to two one-year periods; and 

WHEREAS, the Goldsboro-Wayne Transportation Authority Board of Directors requested 
the contract with Quest Corporation of America, Inc., be extended and amended in order to 
draw down 5303 funds for eligible transit planning activities for one additional year on February 
24, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the Goldsboro MPO Transportation Advisory Committee approved the 
contract extension with Quest Corporation of America, Inc., for additional tasks associated with 
Goldsboro-Wayne Transportation Marketing and Public Relations transit planning services and 
activities on March 17, 2022; and  

WHEREAS, the total fee proposal for the contract extension submitted by Quest 
Corporation of America, Inc., is in the amount of $50,117.00; and 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Transportation has agreed to allow the 
use of 5303 funds to fund 90% (80% FTA and 10% State) of the contract in the amount of 
$45,105.00; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro will be responsible for 10% of the contract in the 
amount of $5,012.00; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it in the best interest of the City of Goldsboro to 
accept and award the contract extension to Quest Corporation of America, Inc., in the amount 
of $50,117.00, for one additional year, for additional tasks associated with the Goldsboro-
Wayne Transportation Marketing and Public Relations transit planning services; 



 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North 
Carolina, that: 
 

1.   The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute a contract 
extension with Quest Corporation of America Inc., in the amount of $50,117.00 for the 
Goldsboro-Wayne Transportation Authority Marketing and Public Relations additional 
transit planning services for one additional year. 

 
2.   This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 4th day of April, 
2022. 

 
 
 
 
 

 ___________________________ 
  David Ham, Mayor  

 
 
Attested by: 
 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  
 







SECTION I 

Contract Extension and Amendment
City of Goldsboro, North Carolina

Fiscal Year Begins July 1, 2022 Ends June 30, 2023 
Contract# ____________

Amendment #1 

Contract# ________ 

(GWTA) 

Agency: Goldsboro-Wayne Transportation Authority 
Program: Transportation Planning and Marketing (5303)
Effective Period of the Contract Extension: July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 

This Contract Amendment amends the contract between the City of Goldsboro and Quest Corporation of America (the
"Contractor"). As provided for under the terms of the contract, The City and Contractor agree to amend the provision(s) 
indicated in Section II below. 

SECTION II 

Justification/Change to Contract: 
Due to impacts of the pandemic on GWTA ridership there is a need to increase and update planning and marketing efforts
funded through Section 5303 of the Federal Transit grant program. Negotiated rates will increase in the following manner: 

Year Four Funding Level for eligible expenses will increase from $33,660 to $50,117

These rates are subject to change on July 1st of each fiscal year or upon thirty (30) days' notice at any time during the fiscal 
year by mutual agreement with the Service Provider.

The Scope of Work to be completed will be amended to add additional tasks as follows: Workforce Development Planning
and Materials; Update and Development of additional marketing collaterals and displays; Audit and Refresh Signage;
Development of "How to Ride" videos and travel training; Radio Advertising; Refresh Social Media Presence

SECTION Ill 

All other terms and conditions set forth in the original contract shall remain in effect for the duration of the contract. The 
contract specified above is amended by this Contract Amendment effective _______________ _ 

Contractor 

By:   ________ 

Title: _______ 

City 

By:  _______

Title: _______ 

Date: _______ Date: _______

This agreement has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act.  

Signature: _______________________________ 

Date: _________________________

City: Goldsboro 

Title: City Finance Director 

Contract-Amendment (2023) Page 1 of 1 

_______________________________























I





RESOLUTION NO. 2022— 3

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH THE NORTH CAROLINA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR THE INSPECTION

OF BRIDGES ON THE MUNICIPAL STREET SYSTEM

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro has requested the Department of Transportation

to perform certain work under the Federal -Aid Highway Bridge Replacement and
Rehabilitation Program, said work to consist of the inspection and analysis of all public

bridges on the Municipal Street System in the City of Goldsboro; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro proposes to enter into an agreement with the
North Carolina Department of Transportation for said work wherein the Department of

Transportation or a Consulting Engineering firm retained by the Department of
Transportation will inspect and prepare the necessary reports for all public bridges on the
Municipal Street System in accordance with the National Bridge Inspection Standards; 
and

WHEREAS, under the proposed agreement the Federal Highway Administration
shall reimburse the Department of Transportation for eighty percent ( 80%) of the cost of

the work subject to compliance with all applicable federal policy and procedural rules
and regulations; and

WHEREAS, under the proposed agreement the City of Goldsboro shall reimburse
the Department of Transportation for all costs of the work incurred by the North Carolina
Department of Transportation not paid by the Federal Highway Administration; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The agreement for the hereinabove referenced bridge inspection work is

hereby formally approved by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro and
the Mayor and City Clerk of this Municipality are hereby empowered to sign
and execute the required agreement between the City of Goldsboro and the
Department of Transportation. 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the
4t" 

day of
April, 2022. 

9 t

r'- 

id Ham, Mayor



J



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 3 3

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH CDM SMITH, INC. 

FOR UTILITY MERGER/ REGIONALIZATION FEASIBILITY ( MRF) STUDY

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro has determined that it is
necessary and in the best public interest to undertake a study for Utility
Merger/ Regionalization Feasibility ( MRF); and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro desires to authorize
Professional Engineering Services Agreement required for the MRF Study based on the
scope of services submitted by CDM Smith, Inc. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute Professional
Engineering Services Agreement for an amount not to exceed $ 100, 000 with

CDM Smith, Inc. for professional engineering services pertaining to a study for
Utility Merger/ Regionalization Feasibility ( MRF). 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
4h

day of April, 
2022. 

Attested by: 

A

Laura Getz, City Clerk

id Ha , Mayor



K



E





C

O
 -6

C
to

L

UA

0
t
o

Q
) 

O
N

U

p
LM

m

z
Q

 __
j

C

0
m

U
L

 
>

 
V

) L
u
' 

E

N
r
l

O
N

N
O

L

Z

Z

w

t
N

Q
c

C
L

O

O

W

y
j

v
CU

V
p

0
O

L

Z
Q

O
4

' +
- 

L
U

Q

Q
O

o
aE

c
 °

 
L

aQ

N
E

U
U

Q
) -

a
m

 `
c
i 

E
a

U

0
E

O
O

Q) 

3
L

n
O

U
L

n

N
n
o

c
3

to
N

c
o

C
O

U
v

M
 '

c
O

U
Q/ 

4m, 
t

M

O
p

Q
U

A
U

aA
i

QJ
j

N
-
0

Z

y

Z
C

O
f6

 ' 
p

N
O

o

Q
L
 
+

 
Z

v

v
O

t

O
m

U
N

O
O

W

E 
c

c
u

N
4
- 

U
Q

C
O

to

oN

U
u

Q
1

N
M

W
Z

H
O

N
C

a
i

0

N
2

aCC a
t

6
O

O
O

V
O

ON

wd
z Zp

0
c6

a
L

0
L

fa
o

3
N

Q
1

O

u
cu

QJC

O
o

n
E

m
tin

N
L

E

O
O

O
O

v
f6

u
U

N
l7

C
W

E
m

L
n

m
tw

E
 

r
'

c
v

Z
a

wQ

to
m

a
O

 , 
C

Z

O

a
0

L
 
'

a
O

N
to

Q
U

N

0
O

bo
O

O
U

a
Q

) 
O

O

Z
w

LLO
 

v
O

C
M

i

to
m

C
L

a
 +

J
O

L
0

0
Z

Wp
F

- 

v1

O
4

C
O

m
r
-
 

O
O

w

w

O+ 

U

t6
L

d
o

c
r

O
Q

) 
O

t)
D

m

o

O

Q

wcc
N

LM
m

1
1

N
to

C
NE

11
U

N
Q) 

Q
) 

O

Z
O

v
 
=

 
aj

CL

E0
a
>

 
L
>

 

LU

t
CO

O

O
E

u
V

0

LU

z

ul
O

o0p
H

Z
y

W
3

CLO
u

CL) 

F- 
a

Q
to

E
r4N

Q/ 

M
O

O
N

m
p

O

VZ

O
N

t
o

a
 
=

 
'

t3
 ` 

v
i
 
.N

 '
o

Z

Z

LL
N

to

W
O

j
w

U
co

U -
r
-
 

m
w

E
 =

 
to

p
m

iZ

O
to

N
 '

L
C

L
o
to

N

Z
L

O
m

V
 _

 
5

I
n

C
N

C
N

UU
u

p
a

S
  

C
C

to

L

UA

0
t
o

Q
) 

U
O

0
m

a
J

v
E

0
E

Z
O

 >
 

w
o

N
O

O
a

W
L
 "

O
O

 +
 

L

L
0

a
)

c
a
 
+

,
 

o

Q
U  E

N
E

UO
O

Q) 

3
L

n
O

U
L

n

4
Q

O
y

v
L

u
N

G
o

O
0

0

U
Q/ 

4m, 
t

M
L

M
fO

m

TO
C

y
N

C
. 

L
P

'
I

v
OL
 
•
`
 

o
C

O
M

U
a

' 
a
i

v
O

t
Q

J

V
t

OM
t

E
V

i
C

E 
c

O

Z
a

c

U
Q

C
O

to

oN
t

m
a
)  " 

O
4
+

 
N

0

O
U

Q
>, 

u
3

N
p

W
p

N
a

c
E

E
a

u
cu

QJC

M

C
. 

3Z
O

C
L

Q
O

N

t
-
 M

N
Q

i
to

N
Y

0

E
m

4
,
 

u
L
U

Z
to

m
Q

J

O
c
o

C
L

N
C

C
C

O
Q) 

O
to

m

O
G

a
, 

O
O

E
L

O
ti0

U
v1

N
p

p
w

C
:

C

O+ 

C 'a
xm

m
s

N
N

u
U

A
, 

L
m

o

O

wcc
N

LM
m

0
0N

O
Y

U
V

O
O

LU

t
CO

O

m

LU
O

ul
O

C
t

ca
O

N
H

Z
y

W
3

m
F- 

a
Q

to

E
r4N

Q/ 
3

C
L

O

O
O

N
O

O
O

O
Z

r
 
-I

LL
N

to
N

U
4
 '

6
p

m
iZ

M



F









c
o
 -

a

to

C
N

z
C

) J
c
li

C

w
U

 .;
T

Q
 
>

 
V

) =
 

r
to

U
O

C
a

J
r
 
- I

3
z

Q
N

NL
J

C

N
a

 
 

C
O

. 
C

a
j ; 

a
v

Q
i

a
U

>
 

i
y

Q

Z

v
E

QE

c ._  
aQ

m

U
U

am
i

m
L
U

o

fu
0

o

c

m
U

U
 '=

 
O

v
m

a

3
o

s
O

n
L

o
o

CU

Q
b

0
U

d
o

 +
+

 
N

N
-

0

za

ZJ

C
0

L
 
 

Z

t
 
-p

N
C

w
 
 
'
 

a
C

O
m

U
N

O
Q

O
O

w
<

 

C

L
N

p
O

O
vt

a
i

c> -
n

U
v

N
U

 +
 

Wz
0
(

U

C
N

c
—

 
U

C
m

w
 -

a
O

 -
0

N
L
Z

u

a

N

Q
a

s
a

O
O

Q
V

-
0m

No
w

Z
O

v
v

C
C7

C
L

C

N
a

Z
m

N
 ` 

m
- 

G
1

d
N

a' 

n
L

m
O

0U
H

O4O
W

m
Ucu

V
L

U
' 

CO
L
Y

O

Z
m

W
V

) 
O

C
v

Q

ZQ
Q

a
0

0
C

C

m
O

N
C

u
A

O
m

Z

a

C
0
 -

g
-

0
Q
0

U
U

0
C7

U
b

o
O

U
w

O
C

Q
G

J
O

C
L

O

ZZ

w
W

w
0

C
m

m
m

C
 -

E
O

s
Z

0

C
C

o
 °

 
m

v
-
 
-
' 

4
, 

0
3

N
O

w
U

O
A

C
—

 
C

O
aC

i
O

 '
V

OA

L
} 

O
O

V

L
U

N
4-1

O
7

Q

00
p

C
C

O
m

G1
ai

Z
O

v
E

_
 (

U
EC

L
Q

>
 

L
 
>

 

U

O_ 
C

m
V

O
4
+

 
O

EUai 0

3Z

Zw

0

OC
U

U
o0

v
a

O
0-

0CU

LVL
O

4
1

 '
L

0
N

4
' -

0
C

QW

cn
0

O
U

CO
D

D

Q

O
m

 —
 

m
C

N
m

m

z

O
en +_ 

L -
a

Q
a

t
a

N

G/ 

Q
w

v
v

a
C

U
m

O

p
w

 +, +
J

m
 '

O
w

E
t

m

N
E

V
y

O
m

N
 '

L
Q

. 

4
—

 

Q
N

m

C

ZQ

C
 

L
N

m
72_ 

C
N

 `^ 0

U
U .

Q
L

Co
0

O

Q
Y

N
7

CCO
Q

 "
a

Y

L
4. 

a
a... 

aF

L
n

c
U

u
0

M
V

a
m

,
 

c
to

w

aj
m

r
to

U
O

C
J

C

m
C

N
m

i
a

U
>

 
i

y
N

m
L
l

O
Z

o
c ._  

o
mm

o

c
L

M
_

 
V

a
v

CU

S
+

 a0. 
C

m
C

v
N

O
L

m
C

a
C

y
Q

} 

O
O

O
t

C
a

i

v
L4

1
U

O
V

I

U
UC -

C
CO

O
Lp

0
6

r
N

a
m

m
V

4O
H

L
M

t
G

1
U

t

4
1

H
CO

d
N

a' 

n
L

m
O

a
C

O
Lp

M
m

C

O
V

t
dA

y
O

. 
L
L

0
0

V
Q -

a
N

c
c

c
a

C
L

m

Q
O

L
n

M
Z

OU

oa
O

c
N

U

N
x

s
Z

C
a

i

o
a
 

N
O

U
L

L
} 

O
O

V
N

c
n

0
- 

pc
E

C

N
00

p

C
C

O
m

G1
ai

H
N

U

O_ 
C

m
V

V
)
 

3Z
Q

CLO
CU

QO

0
C

LVL
O

W
O

>
 

Z
cn

0
u

D

Q

O
m

 —
 

w
O

w
@

uC

O
en +_ 

L -
a

0
[
 

C
C

o

CL
N

G/ 
J
w

C
c

C
z

v
C

7
W

O
U

Jvid
N

E
V

y

WCO
m

C
A

Q
C

 
U

U .
Q

L
Co

0

O
cn .

0
c
c
C

w
L

4. 

a
a... 

aF

L
d

w
N

o
i
i
3

0
x

E
c

O
m

CU
N

OW
V

O
+

 
a

C
4

C
L

U
C

O
V

C
O

i
c
r

d
0

A
V

d

C

m
C

Q
u

L
U

t
0

L
L
; 

L
m

O
: 
t
' 

3
N

 
.
 

LmCO
Q

C
E

Q. 
r 

Q.. 
3

f°
 -

o

Z
7

4

Lv
G

1
G

J
4

J

OU
l
i

Q
N

F- 
N

 
+

-
 

D
m

a

M



Item L


	Agenda 04-04-22
	ws Item a - NPO
	ws Item  - NPO Support
	ws item  - NPO Paperwork Received

	ws item c - NonResident Fee Presentation
	Slide Number 1
	Background on P&R Program Fees
	Youth Soccer Participation
	Fees Charged by Other P&R Departments
	Fees Charged by Other P&R Departments (continued)
	Items for Council to Consider
	 

	Item A.1 - Minutes 03-07-22
	MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL
	MARCH 7, 2022
	UWORK SESSION
	The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on March 7, 2022.
	UCall to Order.U  Mayor Pro Tem Polack called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.
	URoll Call.
	Present: Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack, Presiding
	Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones
	Councilman Bill Broadaway
	Councilwoman Brandi Matthews
	Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV
	UCITY COUNCIL MEETING
	Present:  Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack, Presiding
	Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones
	Councilman Bill Broadaway
	Councilwoman Brandi Matthews
	Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV
	Absent:  Mayor David Ham
	Councilman Gene Aycock
	UApproval of Minutes.U  Councilman Broadaway made a motion to approve the minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of February 7, 2022. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried.
	UPresentations.
	Resolution Recognizing Brandi Matthews as the First African American Woman Elected to the Goldsboro City Council. Resolution Adopted. Brandi Matthews made history when she was elected to the Goldsboro City Council on November 5, 2019, becoming the fir...
	Upon motion of Councilman Broadaway, seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried, Council adopted the following entitled Resolution.
	RESOLUTION 2022-10 “RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING BRANDI MATTHEWS AS THE FIRST AFRICAN AMERICAN WOMAN ELECTED TO THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL”
	Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Demetrius Speight as an Employee of the City of Goldsboro for More Than 24 Years. Resolution Adopted. Demetrius Speight retired on March 1, 2022 as a Solid Waste Technician with the Public Wo...
	Upon motion of Councilman Gaylor, seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried, Council adopted the following entitled Resolution.
	RESOLUTION NO. 2022-11 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY DEMETRIUS SPEIGHT AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 24 YEARS”
	FY19-20 Audit Presentation. John Frank and Chad Cooke with Dixon Hughes Goodman shared the following presentation:
	Council discussed the audit and upcoming audit timetable with Mr. Cook and Mr. Frank.
	Annual Community Assessment of CPD Program Performance: 2020 CAPER. Felecia Williams, Community Relations Director, shared she is here to address HUD’s assessment of the 2020 CAPER and the city’s response.
	UPublic Hearing.
	Public Hearing to Consider a Proposal to Provide Economic Incentives to the Mount Olive Pickle Company. Item Deferred. The Mount Olive Pickle Company has been in business in Mount Olive since 1926. Pursuant to NC General Statue 158-7.1, a public hear...
	Mount Olive Pickle Company, Inc. will incur costs in purchasing facilities and adding machinery and equipment to such facilities, and the County and City will realize economic benefits due to the expansion of the ad valorem tax base and the creation o...
	Mount Olive Pickle Company, Inc.'s expansion in Goldsboro depends in part on the support of the NC Department of Commerce $22 million grant for utility infrastructure, the County, and City in terms of incentives, including, but not limited to, adequat...
	A grant by the County and the City to the Mount Olive Pickle Company, Inc. in the amount of One Million Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,200,000) would be an incentive for such investment by the Mount Olive Pickle Company, Inc. to assist the same pay ...
	Following the public hearing and depending on comments received, staff recommended Council adopt the following entitled Resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute a performance agreement with the Mount Olive Pickle Company, Inc.
	Mark Pope with the Wayne County Development Alliance shared information regarding the Mount Olive Pickle Company and the proposed economic incentives.
	Council discussed the proposed economic incentives to the Mount Olive Pickle Company.
	Mayor Pro Tem Polack opened the public hearing and the following people spoke:
	1. Carl Martin shared comments regarding transparency, public transportation, Wayne County Development Alliance Board of Directors, revenue, and water and sewer expectations.
	2. Dr. David Craig shared comments regarding the proposed Economic Development Agreement and the lack of a wastewater system assessment. He also shared comments regarding American Rescue Plan funds, and Item I-Professional Engineering On-Call Services...
	No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed.
	Mayor Pro Tem Polack requested further information regarding concerns made by residents. Mayor Pro Tem Polack requested the item be tabled to the next meeting.
	Council discussed meeting notifications.
	Mark Pope with the Wayne County Development Alliance shared comments regarding concerns made by Council and residents.
	Councilman Gaylor made a motion that the item be moved to the next meeting agenda. Councilwoman Jones seconded the motion. Mayor Pro Tem Polack, Councilwoman Jones, Councilwoman Matthews, and Councilman Gaylor voted for the motion. Councilman Broadawa...

	Item A.2 - Minutes 03-21-22
	Item B - Homefront - Arnajhia_Powerpoint
	Item C - Month of the Military Child 2022
	Item D-1 - Z-1-22 418  420 Wilson FCA Agenda Memo
	Item D-2 - Z-1-22 Ordinance
	Item E-1 - Z-2-22 700 E Elm FCA
	Item E-2 - Z-2-22 Ordinance
	Item F-1 - Z-3-22 Agenda Memo FCA
	Item F-2 - Z-3-22 Ordinance
	Item G-1 - Z-4-22 Agenda Memo FCA
	Item G-2 - Z-4-22 Ordinance
	Item H - Municipal Agreement with NCDOT
	Item I - Utility Merger Regionalization Feasibility Study (MRF)
	Item J - GWTA QCA Extension
	Agenda Memo_GWTA Marketing Services_2022_Extension
	Resolution_GWTA Marketing Services_2022_Extension
	GWTA Request to Amend QCA Contract for fy23
	GWTA and QCA agreement extension for FTA 5303 Funds Available
	Quest Contract 2019

	Item L - Week of the Young Child 2022
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



